




























































































































































































































































































1 
 

REPORT FIN-2015-016 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT: Ontario Regulation 284/09 2015 Budget  
 File No. F05 BUD 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2015-016 regarding Ontario Regulation 284/09 2015 Budget be 
received; and 

That Council adopts this report which meets the requirements of Ontario Regulation 
284/09 and outlines the conversion of the cash based operating and capital budgets to 
a Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) compliant budget format. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 
Ontario Regulation 284/09 requires municipalities that have excluded expenses in their 
budgets to prepare a report about those excluded expenses and adopt the report by 
resolution.  

Background 
 
In 2009, accounting standards and financial reporting requirements changed 
significantly, with the most notable change being that of the requirement to report on 
tangible capital assets (TCA).  However, these new accounting standards do not require 
budgets to be prepared on the same basis.   

The Township of Puslinch, like many municipalities, continues to prepare budgets on 
the traditional cash basis. These budgets do not include the PSAB requirements of 
accrual accounting and accounting for non-financial assets such as TCA.  

 



2 
 

Ontario Regulation 284/09 
 
Allowable excluded expenses as per Ontario Regulation 284/09 can be all or a portion 
of the following: 

a) Amortization expenses 
b) Post-employment benefit expenses 
c) Solid waste landfill closure and post-closure expenses 

The Township excludes amortization expenses as they are a non-cash expense. Post- 
employment benefit expenses are not applicable to the Township, therefore no 
adjustment is required. The Township does not have any landfill expenses and as such, 
they are not applicable.  

The regulation requires the report to contain at a minimum: 

a) An estimate of the change in the accumulated surplus (revenues less 
expenditures) of the municipality to the end of the year resulting from the 
exclusion of expenses 

b) An analysis of the estimated impact of the exclusion of expenses on future TCA 
funding requirements 

In addition to these excluded expenses, the cash based budgets prepared by the 
Township include certain types of transactions that need to be excluded for PSAB 
reporting purposes. These are not covered in Ontario Regulation 284/09. However, for 
transparency purposes and consistency, the accumulated surplus contained in this 
report, will be included as budget figures in the 2015 audited financial statements, if 
approved by Council. As such, the following items that are included in the cash based 
budget will be excluded from the PSAB based budget: 

a) Carroll Pond debenture principal repayment expenditures 
b) Transfers to working reserves 
c) Contributions from working reserves 
d) Fixed Asset/TCA expenditures 

Comments 
 
Table 1 below outlines the changes made to convert the balanced 2015 budget 
prepared under the cash basis of accounting to a decrease to the Township’s 
accumulated surplus in the amount of $538,045.  
  



3 
 

Table 1 - 2015 Proposed Budget – Cash Based 
 
Proposed 2015 Operating Budget Tax Levy   $2,637,099 
Proposed 2015 Operating Budget Revenues   $1,665,149 
Proposed 2015 Operating Contributions from  
Working Reserves       $357,125 
Proposed 2015 Operating Budget Expenditures   $(4,659,373) 
Surplus/(Deficit)              $ -____      
 
Proposed 2015 Capital Budget Funded    $1,454,540 
Proposed 2015 Capital Budget Expenditures   $(1,454,540) 
Surplus/(Deficit)              $ -____   
 
Add Expenditures Excluded from Cash Based Budget 
Amortization Expense      $(1,817,798) 
 Exclusion Impact on Accumulated Surplus/ (Deficit) $(1,817,798) 
 
Remove Non PSAB Items from Cash Based Budget 
Carroll Pond debenture principal repayment expenditures $106,000 
Transfers to Reserves (Capital Budget)    $208,500 
Transfers to Reserves (Operating Budget)   $24,000 
Contribution from Reserves (Capital Budget)   $(127,830) 
Contribution from Reserves (Operating Budget)   $(357,125) 
Funds from Debenture Issuances     $ - 
Fixed Asset/TCA Expenditures     1,426,208 

Total Impact on 2015 Accumulated Surplus/(Deficit)  (538,045) 
 
Amortization of $1,817,798 listed in table 1 above was calculated as an average of the 
amortization expense recorded in the 2014 and 2013 audited financial statements. 
Amortization expense has a major impact on the 2015 accumulated surplus amount. 
The amortization expense reduces the surplus amount and also reduces the net book 
value of the TCA reported on the audited statement of financial position.  
 
Fixed asset purchases of $1,426,208 documented in Table 1 above are lower than 
amortization. This means that the Township’s assets are declining at a faster rate 
(21.5%) than they are being replaced. 
 
TCA amortization is an indicator of the amount that should be contributed towards the 
replacement of existing infrastructure. Although replacement cost will likely be higher 
than TCA amortization which is based on historical cost, revenues to offset TCA 
amortization would be a significant contribution to ensuring that a municipality has 
sufficient funds to repair and replace existing infrastructure.  
 
 
 
  



4 
 

The Township’s projected accumulated surplus at the end of 2015 is as follows: 
 
December 31, 2014 Audited Accumulated Surplus   $22,914,127 
Projected Impact of 2015 Budget     (538,045)   
2015 Estimated Ending Accumulated Surplus   $22,376,082 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

There are no direct financial implications associated with this report. The intent is to 
describe the conversion of the cash based operating and capital budgets to a PSAB 
budget format, which complies with the PSAB requirements.  

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 

Ontario Regulation 284/09 of the Municipal Act, 2001 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 



1 
 

REPORT FIN-2015-017 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT: Insurance Renewal  
 File No. L06 FRA 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2015-017 regarding the Township of Puslinch’s Insurance Renewal be 
received; and 

That Council extend the 2014 Municipal Insurance Program to February 1, 2016.  

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 
The purpose of this report is to coordinate the renewal of the Township’s Municipal 
Insurance Program with Frank Cowan Company to February 2016 in order to effectively 
incorporate any adjustments to premium in the Township’s annual budgeting process. 
 

Background 
 
Council at its Operating Budget meeting held on January 28, 2015 requested staff to 
look into the timing of the renewal of its insurance to coincide with the Township’s 
budget approval process. 
 
The Township’s current 2014 Municipal Insurance Program’s term is September 1, 2014 
to September 1, 2015 which does not coincide with the Township’s budget deliberation 
timeframe. 
 
Based on discussions with Julio D’Antonio from Jeffery & Spence Ltd., the Township 
has two options for changing the renewal date to February 1, 2016. 



2 
 

1. Extend under the 2014 Municipal Insurance Program to February 1, 2016 and 
charge a pro rata premium based on the premiums quoted in the 2014 Municipal 
Insurance Program. 
 

2. Underwrite the account for September 1, 2015 and offer an extended term to 
February 1, 2017 (17 month term). 

Township staff recommend choosing option 1 as the advantage of extending the current 
term to February 1, 2016 would lock the Township’s current terms and premiums for an 
additional five months. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The premiums for the September 1, 2014 to September 1, 2015 term equated to 
$161,949 net of taxes payable. The option of extending under the 2014 Municipal 
Insurance Program to February 1, 2016 would result in pro rata premium of 5/12 months 
(September 1, 2015 to February 1, 2016) amounting to $67,479 net of taxes payable.  

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 

Not applicable. 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 



1 
 

REPORT FIN-2015-018 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2014 Lease Financing Agreement Summary Report  
 File No. A09 LEA 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2015-018 regarding 2014 Lease Financing Agreement Summary 
Report be received;  

That Council approve the Lease Financing Agreement Policy as outlined in Schedule 
“B” to Report FIN-2015-018.  

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 

The purpose of this report is to comply with the Treasurer’s reporting requirements as 
set out by Ontario Regulation 653/05, as amended and to obtain Council approval on 
the Lease Financing Agreement Policy as outlined in Schedule “B” to Report FIN-2015-
018. 

Background 
 
Section 9 of Ontario Regulation 653/05, as amended states that before a municipality 
passes a by-law authorizing a lease financing agreement, the Council of the 
municipality shall adopt a statement of policies and goals relating to the use of lease 
financing agreements. This policy has been outlined in Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-
018. 
 
Lease financing agreements represent long-term commitments of the municipality 
beyond the term of Council. It is a requirement pursuant to Section 11 of Ontario 
Regulation 653/05, as amended, at least once a year, the Treasurer report to Council to 
ensure all lease financing agreements have been made in accordance with the 
Township’s approved policy.  
 



2 
 

The intent of the Act and regulation is to impose a higher level of due diligence on lease 
financing agreements for municipal capital facilities.  
 
A list of the Township’s active lease financing agreements as of December 31, 2014 
and December 31, 2013 are outlined in Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-018. Each of 
the leases on the attached Schedule A represent a non-material lease in accordance 
with the Township’s Lease Financing Agreement Policy. Municipalities are not required 
to undergo the extensive review required for material lease financing agreements, prior 
to entering into an agreement, if there are specific policies in place and if, in the opinion 
of the Township’s Treasurer and Council, the proposed agreement would not result in a 
material impact for the community after considering, costs, risks, and other existing 
agreements. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 

The annual cost of lease financing agreements at the Township is $19,993 (see 
Schedule A). The leases consist of 1 property lease, photocopier and postage meter 
equipment leases, and a vehicle lease. The expiry dates for current agreements range 
from 2014 to 2017 and the remaining balance of the payments in future years is 
$40,142 as of December 31, 2013 and $25,431 as of December 31, 2014. The 
remaining balance of lease payments in future years as a percentage of the Township’s 
combined long-term debt including leases is 6.1% as of December 31, 2013 and 4.9% 
as of December 31, 2014.  

It is the opinion of the Director of Finance/Treasurer that the lease financing agreements 
listed on Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-018 are non-material to the Corporation and 
have been made in accordance with the Township’s leasing policies and goals as 
outlined in Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-018.  

The overall Township’s commitment on leases has decreased as a percentage of the 
Township’s long-term debt including leases from 6.1% in 2013 to 4.9% in 2014. The 
small decrease reflects the combined effect of the reduction in the lease commitments 
compared to 2013 and the reduction in the long-term debt resulting from repayments 
during 2014. 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 

Ontario Regulation 653/05, as amended of the Municipal Act, 2001 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

Schedule A – Treasurer’s 2014 Lease Financing Agreements Summary Report 

Schedule B – Lease Financing Agreement Policy 





 Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-018 
  

1 
 

 

 
 
TITLE:  LEASE FINANCING AGREEMENT POLICY  
 
DATE:   May 6, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  LEASE FINANCING AGREEMENT POLICY  

File No. A09 LEA 
 
 
Purpose: 
 

1. To adopt a statement of the Township’s lease financing agreement policies and 
goals. Ontario Regulation 653/05, as amended, requires the adoption of such a 
statement before a municipality may enter into a lease financing agreement.   
 

2. To provide guidance to staff when contemplating lease arrangements for the 
provision of Municipal Capital Facilities as defined in Ontario Regulation 603/06, 
as amended. 
 

3. To ensure that both staff and Council are aware of the entire cost of the financial 
lease, of any special risks to the Township that are attached to the lease 
agreement and that alternative sources of financing have been considered.  

 
Definitions 
 
Financing Lease: a lease allowing for the provision of Municipal Capital Facilities and 
the lease may or will require payment by the municipality beyond the term of Council; 
 
Municipal Capital Facilities: includes land, as defined in the Assessment Act, works, 
equipment, machinery and related systems and infrastructures. 
 
Material Lease: a Financing Lease that would result in a Material Impact for the 
Township.  
 
Material Impact:  means costs or risks that significantly affect, or would reasonably be 
expected to have a significant effect on, the debt and financial obligation limit prescribed 
under Ontario Regulation 403/02, as amended. 
 
Statement of Lease Financing Agreement Policies and Goals:  
 

1. The Township’s objective is to preserve and improve the long-term financial 
health of the Corporation and to ensure that prices paid for goods and services 



 Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-018 
  

2 
 

make optimum use of Township resources. When staff consider the option of a 
lease financing arrangement, the evaluation of the option must strictly adhere to 
this goal. 
 

2. Prior to entering into a Material Lease the following considerations will be taken 
into account: 
 

a. The financial risks and benefits of the lease transaction, such as a 
comparison between the fixed and estimated costs and the risks 
associated with the proposed agreement and those associated with other 
methods of financing, the effective rate(s) of interest, a sensitivity analysis 
for leases with variable lease payments, a schedule of all fixed amounts of 
payment and that which may be required by any extension or renewal of 
the agreement, and a statement of any contingent payment options 
associated with termination, replacement, loss, guarantees and 
indemnities;  
 

b. The non-financial risks and benefits of the lease transaction; 
 

c. County of Wellington feedback after written notification to the County is 
provided regarding the lease financing agreement being considered;  
 

d. The independent legal and financial opinions of the transaction, including 
the legality of the terms and provisions of any proposed agreement or 
agreements, and any other legal considerations affecting the lease 
transaction; 
 

e. An assessment regarding whether the financial and non-financial risks 
associated with the agreement are reasonable; and 
 

f. An assessment regarding whether the cost of financing in the proposed 
financing agreement is lower than other methods of financing available to 
the Township such as debt, reserves, operating funds. 
 

g. The costs and risks associated with a proposed lease financing 
agreement in the report shall be assessed as of the date the report is 
made.  The summary of information in the report shall include all 
information required for the entire term of the proposed lease financing 
agreement, including any possible extensions or renewals. 
 

h. At any time after a report regarding a potential lease financing agreement 
has been made, but before the proposed lease financing agreement is 
entered into, if the Director of Finance/Treasurer becomes of the opinion 
that a changed circumstance with respect to the proposed agreement may 
result in a Material Impact for the Township, the Director of 



 Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-018 
  

3 
 

Finance/Treasurer shall as soon as reasonably possible update the report 
and present the updated report to Council. 

 
3. The Director of Finance/Treasurer, in accordance with legislative requirements, 

shall submit an annual report on lease financing agreements to Council. The 
report shall include the following: 

 
a. A description of the estimated proportion of the total financing 

arrangements of the Township that is undertaken through lease financing 
agreements to the total long-term debt of the Township and a description 
of the change, if any, in that estimated proportion since the previous year’s 
report;  
 

b. A statement by the Director of Finance/Treasurer as to whether, in his or 
her opinion, all lease financing agreements were made in accordance with 
the statement of leasing policies and goals adopted by the Township; and 
 

c. Any other information that Council may require or that, in the opinion of 
the Director of Finance/Treasurer, should be recorded. 
 

Non-Material Lease Financing Agreements: 
 

1. It is recognized that certain categories of financing leases will not involve costs or 
risks that will significantly affect, or would reasonably be expected to have effect 
on the financial debt repayment and financial limits prescribed for the Township. 
The following leases are considered non-material leases: 
 

a. Leases for office equipment including photocopiers, multi-functional 
printers, postage meters, etc. which have been entered into in accordance 
with the Township’s Purchasing and Procurement Policy; and 

 
b. Leases of real property where the lease is nominal, token consideration or 

consideration that does not exceed the materiality level of the audited 
financial statements.  

 



1 
 

REPORT FIN-2015-019 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT: Township General Surplus 2014  
 File No. F05 BUD 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2015-019 regarding Township General Surplus 2014 be received; and 

That the General Surplus balance as of December 31, 2014 of $626,661 be allocated in 
accordance with the policy adopted by Council through Council Resolution Number 
2013-284. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a general status report on the 2014 
Township General Surplus as at December 31, 2014. The total Township General 
Surplus was $626,661 as per the 2014 audited financial statements.  

Background 
 
At the January 28, 2015 Operating Budget Meeting, staff indicated that the December 
31, 2014 surplus allocation will be provided for information in a report to Council upon 
completion of the audit.  
 
The policy adopted by Council through Council Resolution Number 2013-284 states 
“that Council adopt a policy to allocate any budget surplus to the Township’s working 
reserves for the purpose of meeting future liabilities in accordance with Report FIN-
2013-006.” 
 
Report FIN-2013-006 outlines the following allocation percentages based on the 
proportion of capital expenditures by department: 
  



2 
 

DEPARTMENT % SURPLUS 
ALLOCATION  

ADMINISTRATION 12% 
PUBLIC WORKS 55% 
PARKS 5% 
OPTIMIST RECREATION CENTRE 5% 
PUSLINCH COMMUNITY CENTRE 5% 
FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICES 18% 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
It is recommended that the Township General Surplus of $626,661 be allocated as 
follows:   
 

 % 
Allocation 

$ Value 

Corporate Total - 12% 
Corporate Office Repairs and Restoration 3% $18,800 
Corporate Accessibility 3% $18,800 
Corporate Information Technology Software 3% $18,800 
Corporate Information Technology Hardware  3% $18,800 
Public Works Total - 55% 
Public Works Replacement and Restoration of 
Aging Infrastructure 

28% $175,465 

Public Works Equipment Replacement 27% $169,198 
Parks Total - 5% 
Parks Infrastructure Enhancement 2.5% $15,667 
Parks Equipment Replacement 2.5% $15,667 
Optimist Recreation Centre Total - 5% 
Optimist Recreation Centre Equipment 
Replacement 

2.5% $15,667 

Optimist Recreation Centre Facility Improvement  2.5% $15,667 
Puslinch Community Centre Total - 5% 
Puslinch Community Centre Equipment 
Replacement 

2.5% $15,667 

Puslinch Community Centre Facility Improvement  2.5% $15,667 
Fire and Rescue Services Total - 18% 
Fire Vehicle Replacement 9% $56,398 
Fire Equipment Replacement 9% $56,398 
Total 100% $626,661 

 



3 
 

 
APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 
Municipal Act, 2001 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

None 



1 
 

REPORT FIN-2015-020 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2014 Space Needs Assessment  
 File No. A19 MUN 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2015-020 regarding the 2014 Space Needs Assessment be received; 
and 

That Council authorize the single source retainer of the Ventin Group Architects for the 
architectural services to prepare a schematic design for the proposed addition and 
interior layout renovation in accordance with the Township’s 2014 Space Needs 
Assessment and the County of Wellington Facility Accessibility Design Manual; and 
 
That Council authorize the expenditure of funds in the amount of $17,500 inclusive of 
the non-refundable portion of HST and disbursements to be funded from the 2014 
capital carry-forward account number 01-0010-5000 and the County of Wellington 2015 
Accessibility Fund Incentive Programme Grant. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with the Ventin Group Architects Space 
Needs Assessment for the Municipal Office including Public Works and Fire area as 
outlined in Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-020.  
 
It Is also to obtain Council authorization for the single source retainer of the Ventin 
Group Architects for the architectural services of preparing a schematic design for the 
proposed addition and interior layout renovation in accordance with the Township’s 
2014 Space Needs Assessment and the County of Wellington Facility Accessibility 
Design Manual.  
 



2 
 

Background 
 
The 2014 Budget By-law No. 2014-022 indicated a gross capital cost of $20,000 for a 
Space Needs Assessment to be funded from the following sources: 
 
County of Wellington Accessibility Fund Incentive Programme (2014) $10,000 
Building Surplus Reserve Fund (30% of capital cost)    $6,000 
Corporate Accessibility Working Reserve:      $4,000 
           $20,000 
  
The Space Needs Assessment was completed in early 2015 by the Ventin Group 
Architects at a cost of $10,322 inclusive of the non-refundable portion of HST and 
disbursements. $10,000 of this amount was funded from the Township’s 2014 
application to the County of Wellington Accessibility Fund Incentive Programme Grant. 
Therefore, the capital carry-forward amount from the 2014 approved capital budget 
amounts to $9,678.    
 
Procurement  
 
The Township Procurement By-law does not specifically contain provisions related to 
the sole sourcing or single sourcing. The ability to sole source or single source may be 
utilized in cases where Council has granted specific approval for the use of non- 
competitive procurement processes where in Council’s opinion it would be 
advantageous and in the best interest of the Township. 
 
In this case, it is recommended that the schematic design be procured through the 
Ventin Group Architects as this organization also completed the Space Needs 
Assessment for the Township and has the knowledge and continuity necessary to 
create a schematic design for the proposed addition and interior layout renovation 
based on the recommendations in the Space Needs Assessment. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The 2014 Space Needs Assessment attached as Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-020 
has a final cost estimate of $1,044,326.44 for the proposed addition and interior layout 
renovation.   
 
The next steps after completion of the schematic design and upon Council’s 
determination to move forward with the office renovation and expansion project as 
identified in the 2015 Capital Budget and Forecast for an amount of $365,000 in 2019 is 
the preparation of construction documents, tendering of the contract, and administration 
of the contract by an architectural firm. The additional costs for renovating and 
expanding the existing Municipal Office including the project administration costs will be 
considered during Capital Budget deliberations as part of the 2016 Budget Process.   
 



3 
 

The Township received a quote from the Ventin Group Architects to prepare a 
schematic design for the proposed addition and interior layout renovation in accordance 
with the Township’s 2014 Space Needs Assessment and the County of Wellington 
Facility Accessibility Design Manual at an amount of $17,500 inclusive of the non-
refundable portion of HST and disbursements. It is recommended that the Township 
apply for the 2015 County of Wellington Accessibility Fund Incentive Programme and 
the remaining funds be utilized from the 2014 capital carry-forward account number 01-
0010-5000. Please see below: 
 
County of Wellington Accessibility Fund Incentive Programme (2015) $10,000 
Building Surplus Reserve Fund (30% of capital cost)    $5,250 
Corporate Accessibility Working Reserve:      $2,250 
           $17,500 
 
APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 
Township Purchasing and Procurement of Good and Services By-law 60/08 

ATTACHMENTS 
 

The Township of Puslinch Space Needs Assessment Study dated April 13, 2015 
Prepared by: The Ventin Group Architects 





CONTENTS 
 
1.  EXECUTIVE SUMMARY...............................................................................................................................3 
 
2. CURRENT FACILITY IS NOT SUFFICIENT TO MEET CURRENT NEEDS .................................................................4 

2.1 KEY SPACE FACTORS.......................... ..............................................................................4 
2.2 RECOMMENDATIONS FOR SPACE AND FACILITIES .................................................................4 

 
3. PURPOSE AND TIME FRAME OF THIS STUDY.................................................................................................5 
   
4. ORGANIZATION OF THE DOCUMENT..........................................................................................................5 
 
5. NEED FOR NEW, EXPANDED FACILITIES FOR THE FUTURE.............................................................................6 
  5.1 ACCESSIBILITY...................................................................................................................6 

5.2 CONFIDENTIALITY CONCERNS... .........................................................................................6 
  5.3 MEETING SPACE DEFICIENCIES............................................................................................7 
  5.4 ADJACENCY INCONVENIENCES..........................................................................................7 
  5.5 INDIVIDUAL SPACES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT..................................................................7 
  5.6 SECURITY..........................................................................................................................7 
 
6. PLANNING OBJECTIVES..............................................................................................................................7 
 
7. ACTIVITIES AND OPERATIONS.....................................................................................................................8 
   
8. ADJACENCY MATRIX…………………………........ ..................... ..........................................................9 
   
9. SPACE STANDARDS FOR KEY SPACE ELEMENTS............................ ............................................................11 
  9.1 PROPOSED SPACE STANDARDS.........................................................................................12 

9.2 STANDARD OFFICE & WORKSPACE...................................................................................13 
10. CONSIDERATIONS FOR ORGANIZATION OF SPACE................................................................................14 
 
11. SPACE REQUIREMENTS...........................................................................................................................16 
  11.1 FUNCTIONAL PROGRAM ANALYSIS..................................................................................17 

11.2 FUNCTIONAL PROGRAM SUMMARY.................................................................................23 
  

12. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS............................................................................................25 
 
APPENDICES.................................................................................................................................................26 
  APPENDIX A – STAFF PROJECTION, AS PROVIDED BY TOWNSHIP 

APPENDIX B – EXISTING BUILDING, DEPARTMENTAL AREA, PER DRAWINGS PROVIDED BY TOWNSHIP 
 
SUPPLEMENT: ...........................................................................................................................................28 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
COVER IMAGES: 
AERIAL PHOTO, TOWNSHIP OF PUSLINCH 

2 
 



 
1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The Township of Puslinch has engaged +VG Architects (the Ventin Group Architects) to provide 
a Space Needs Analysis for their existing Facility inclusive of Administration Centre, Fire station 
and Public Works & Parks at 7404 Wellington Road 34 in Guelph.  The existing facility does not 
provide adequate space or functionality to allow efficient operation of township Administration 
functions.   
 
Township of Puslinch was incorporated in 1850, the population is around 7,029 (2011 Census, 
Statistics Canada) and the area it encompasses is 214.61 square kilometres (53,031 Acres). 
 
“Located directly south of the City of Guelph and east of the City of Cambridge, the Township 
of Puslinch offers convenient access to amenities with its close proximity to major cities. A feature 
of the Township is the unique communities that can be found within the Township's boundaries. 
The abundance of sites to explore makes the Township of Puslinch a relaxing and quaint place 
to visit. ”, 1 
The communities in Township of Puslinch are as below: 
“Aberfoyle, Aikensville, Arkell, Badenoch, Barber's Beach, Corwhin, Crieff, Killean, Little Lake, 
Morriston, Puslinch ”, 1 
 “The Township of Puslinch proudly remembers its past and continues to honour its history through 
the preservation of historical architecture, artifacts, and sites. Although some pieces of history 
can't be preserved, the Township values celebrating historical landmarks and those who have 
influenced the Township and left their mark on the community.”, 1  
 
Within this report, only the internal functionality of each Department was assessed; the building 
structure was not observed or documented. 
After investigating the site in August of 2014, +VG Architects (the Ventin Group Architects) submit 
the following analysis as a basis for establishing the strategy to identify current and emerging 
space needs requirements for the use of the Township Facility including Public Works & Parks and 
fire station.  
The Township of Puslinch is embarking on an exciting and timely initiative to carefully review its 
facility requirements as a result of growth needs of the community and desire to create 
consistency in space and develop a team that promotes better working environments and 
more effective community service. 
As part of an intelligent capital plan for a growing community, this Space Needs Analysis will 
describe and illustrate a physical representation of your organization today, tomorrow and 
perhaps several years from now.  We will develop space standards, growth needs and strategies 
for using building design to reinforce and strengthen the relationships of departments.  As well, 
we should carefully consider the nature of contemporary customer service and your 
community’s long term needs for Township administration. 
A clear space needs programmed for growth has been developed with the detailed input of 
your stakeholders. 
The ultimate goal of this Space Needs Analysis is to develop a Master site Plan for development 
of the site and its building(s). Of particular importance are strategies for making your existing 
space more functional, in an effort to harvest more useable space, as well as approaches for 
adding to the building(s) to gain maximize space, improve circulation and visibility, and make 
the building more attractive and community friendly. This study shall eventually be used to 
develop a design layout which is currently out of scope of this study. 
+VG Architect is pleased to provide such service separately, should it be required by township. 
 

1. http://www.puslinch.ca 
3 

 

http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/aberfoyle.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/aikensville.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/arkell.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/badenoch.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/barbers-beach.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/corwhin.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/crieff.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/killean.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/little-lake.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/morriston.asp
http://www.puslinch.ca/en/living-here/puslinch.asp


2.  CURRENT FACILITY IS NOT SUFFICIENT TO MEET CURRENT NEEDS 
 

The existing facility was built in 1981 with an addition/renovation in 2002 and although it is in 
relatively good condition, it does not provide or allow for the communication and technology 
requirements of today. (i.e. lack of communication due to traditional office planning layout in 
comparison with  new government standards for team work layout (see P.13), Lack of proper 
and convenience meeting room (s) equipped with current technologies like smart boards for 
better serving the public, Using smart control systems for energy saving, etc.)  
Currently, some programs must be located inappropriately in the settings, which is challenging 
for operations and service delivery. 
 
The existing facility is not adequately accessible.  The township Administration Office is not 
convenient for some target client groups, and does not meet standards for privacy, 
confidentiality and barrier free accessibility. 
 
Space, especially in terms of meeting rooms and larger areas for groups, is an ongoing issue for 
all Departments within the Administration Building.  Existing storage rooms, although of enough 
size, is scattered, does not have an efficient layout and present limitations for filing and re-
arrangement of office space; flexibility is difficult to achieve. 
 

2.1 KEY SPACE FACTORS 
 

• Meeting Spaces are required on site for education, workshops and meetings with 
community partners and clients to plan services, as well as for internal planning and 
management meetings; the existing meeting spaces are not accessible by all staff, 
not internally connected to all departments, inadequate in size and quantity. 

• A few staff will be required over time as the Township grows and as may be identified 
in the Fire Master Plan and Recreation and Parks Master Plan. Refer to Appendix A, 
Staff projection report. (Also refer to the Report ADM-2014-009, By Ms. Karen Landry) 

• Standardized, generic spaces based on functional need should be provided as much 
as possible to allow for flexibility to reallocate space over time and minimize the need 
for change. 

• The Township of Puslinch is committed to providing a facility that is accessible to 
members of the public and staff.  The Township proposes to provide barrier free 
access for common areas and circulation, washroom facilities, and a reasonable 
number of meeting rooms, offices and work stations.  This approach is based on the 
new proposed provincial standards, based on the County of Wellington “Facility 
Accessibility design Manual (FADM), 2012” 

 
2.2 RECOMMENDATION FOR SPACE AND FACILITIES 

 
To meet the needs of the current programs and the need to increase services over the 
next five to ten years, the existing facility should be redeveloped.  The final building 
layout should; 
• Be accessible to persons with disabilities, the elderly and young families with strollers 

and toddlers. 
• Provide approximately 1,955 square metres (21,000 square feet) of building area to 

meet the growing needs over the next 5 to 10 years. (Where existing building is 
approximately 1,755 square metres (18,900 square feet)). 

 

4 
 



• Be organized in three zones to enable access by public yet provide confidentiality 
for client information  

-Meeting area 
-Public Space / Lobby 
-Staff office area 

• Achieve objectives for energy efficiency and environmental responsibility 
• Allow for expansion to meet longer term community needs; build now to accommodate 

future needs to minimize disruption in the future. 
 
The area calculation projected for the new building is preliminary.  The ultimate requirement will 
depend on the configuration of the building and final targets for services and staff.  This should 
be refined as part of a definitive architectural brief to plan an addition and alteration to current 
facility. 
 
3. PURPOSE AND TIME FRAME OF THIS STUDY 
The Township of Puslinch has reviewed and refined the organization of its programs and services 
for each Department which is used for the preliminary understanding of near future growth. 
Refer to “Organization Structure Update”, Report # ADM-2014-009 by Karen Landry. And has 
been updated through our meeting with stakeholders.  
The Space Needs Study is part of a review of how the activities should best be located and 
organized to serve the public most efficiently and effectively and develop a team that 
promotes better working environments and more effective community service.   
 
TIMEFRAME PROJECTION FOR SPACE ASSESSMENT: 5 TO 10 YEARS 
While the Township of Puslinch anticipates planning the Administration Building for use for 50+ 
years, the Space Needs Assessment Study will more realistically look forward five to ten years.  
However, the building planning should consider a longer term timeframe to anticipate changes 
in activities and use of space as well as the potential for expansion. 
 
4. ORGANIZATION OF THE DOCUMENT 
 
The Space Needs Assessment Study is organized in six chapters which follow this introductory 
chapter. 

• Need for New, Expanded Facilities for the Future, describes the inadequacies of the 
current facility and limitations they impose for delivery, expansion, and addition of 
modified Departmental responsibilities. 

• Planning Objectives describes the key principles which underpin the allocation of space 
and planning of the addition and alterations to existing building to provide an efficient, 
comfortable, safe, and supportive environment for the many clients, partners, and staff 
who use it. 

• Activities and Operations, describes the current functions and services provided by each 
Department and anticipated changes. This chapter assists the reader to understand the 
importance of services that The Township of Puslinch Administration Offices provides to 
Township residents and how these need to grow and evolve to support a healthy, 
expanding population.  This chapter also outlines the corporate support services to be 
accommodated and the overall functional systems for the new building. 

• Factors Affecting Requirements For Space, including; 
- Individual Department space requirements 
- Need for meeting rooms and education and training facilities to function efficiently as an 

Administration Centre, fire station and public Works & parks Garages and administrative 
area. 

5 
 



- need for secured staff area with separate egress options in accordance with the 
assessment of the workplace in accordance with Occupational Health and Safety Act 

- Staff who need to be accommodated in the building in offices and workstations 
- Special functions, such as Information Technology, Council Chambers and Corporate 

Functions, etc. 
- Standards for space 
- Approach to providing accessibility for persons with disabilities 
• Considerations For Overall Organization Of Space: Public Zones and Private Zones 
• Space Requirements – Program Analysis identifies the estimated total area needed for the 

new building. It includes a list of all individual spaces and rooms (elements) required in the 
building; Program Analysis, the number and area of each element and key relationships 
among them. 

  
Appended to the document are: 

• Estimate of the number of staff by position (Staff projection Chart)  
• Conceptual layouts for Offices and workstations for purposes of illustrating the potential 

usage and space to be provided along with space allocation methods comparison.  
• Program illustrations; existing floor plan allocating current Departmental areas. 

 
5. NEED FOR EXPANDED, RENOVATED, AND REORGANIZED FACILITIES FOR THE FUTURE 
 
+VG Architects (The Ventin Group Architects) examined the existing layout of the Township 
Administration Offices in August of 2014.   
After extensive discussions and interviews with staff, it was evident that the existing facility, in 
general, does not meet the corporation`s current needs or any future expansion 
accommodation.  The key deficiencies of the current building are described in the sections 
below. 

5.1 ACCESSIBILITY 
• Accessibility at the building neither is sufficient for the AODA Accessible Built Environment 

Standards (A.B.E.S.), which encompasses AODA (Accessibility for Ontarians with 
Disabilities Act, 2005) or County of Wellington Facility accessibility design manual (FADM 
2012), nor meets latest minimum OBC (Ontario Building Code) requirements at all 
locations. 

• AODA will be implemented as per below: 
 Government of Ontario and the Legislative Assembly, Jan 1, 2015 
 Designated public Sector Organizations, Jan 1, 2016 (this includes all 

municipalities as referred to in O.Reg 413/12, definitions) 
 Large Organizations, Jan 1, 2017 
 Small Organizations, Jan 1, 2018 

• Accessibility is inadequately served in the office area due to existing space limitations 
verses actual space requirements, operations and available floor area. 

• Accessibility is inadequately served in public area for customers and visitors. 
 

5.2 CONFIDENTIALITY CONCERNS 
• Current Private Offices and Meeting Rooms do not provide enough privacy for discussing 

private matters. 
• Meeting Rooms are not always available for private discussions. 

 

6 
 



5.3 MEETING SPACE DEFICIENCIES 
• All departments commented on the lack of available Meeting Rooms to accommodate 

staff and public use. 
• There is a great need for a central large meeting room and a smaller to medium size 

Meeting Rooms for 8-10 attendees to be easily accessible by all departments. 
 

5.4 ADJACENCY INCONVENIENCES 
• Public works , Fire department and township Administration are located far apart  
• The large meeting room (Fire services training area) which shared by all departments is 

only accessible through outside access which makes it inconvenient for building users 
and public, forced to go outside  to access the meeting room.  

• Staff in various departments needs to go through public area to access other 
departments. 

 
5.5 INDIVIDUAL SPACES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT 
• Larger office space for some Managers has been requested due to job function and 

meeting space required in offices for impromptu meetings 
• Placement of Departments and lack of storage space within workspaces and 

Departments is a concern. 
• Technology accommodation is challenging due to the architectural limitations of the 

existing building structure. 
 

5.6 SECURITY 
• Provision of a staff escape and safety plan is paramount 
• Staff should feel safe in their environment 
• Passive and inherent security should be provided; the Township Administration Centre 

should be a welcoming facility and at the same time provide a secure environment for 
staff and clients. 

 
6. PLANNING OBJECTIVES 
The assessment of need for space for the Township of Puslinch Facility is based on six key themes: 
 

1 To use contemporary standards for space including barrier free accessibility, 
standardization of individual spaces determined by function and efficiency of use. 
 

2 To encourage interaction among staff within and between departments to facilitate 
sharing of information and ideas and to stimulate communication. Examples include 
using a common lunch/break room, convenient corridor to connect departments. 
 

3 To provide flexibility and adaptability in use of space, including providing space in the 
building now to allow expansion in the future.  This concept will be essential to providing 
adaptability day to day and in the longer term as programs evolve and grow to meet 
community needs. 
 

4 To facilitate extensive use of technology as a means to communicate, coordinate 
activity, and manage records, data bases, and files.   
Possible Features will include; 

- Extensive use of video conferencing for meetings, to minimize travel particularly 
during the winter months 

- Use of web-based systems to enhance opportunities to provide education, 
training and communication 

7 
 



- Electronic records management and archival filing 
- Electronically equipped meeting rooms for internal and public activities, including 

extensive access to systems and servers and set ups for video conferencing, 
presentations and training workshops 

- High speed, wireless system within the Administration Centre to facilitate team 
work between Departments. 

 
5 To provide a safe environment for clients, public, and staff.   

This will include such factors as: 
- Physical safety and security for staff and public in the building 
- Privacy of information 

 
6  To provide an environmentally friendly environment.  This will apply to aspects of space 

and layout as well as building systems.  For example, the planning should achieve Green 
Design aspects at a minimum, and preferably higher to have superior energy 
conservation ability by use of smart control systems within available budget.   

The impact of office design on business performance, CABE  (Commission for Architecture and the 
Built Environment. 

7. ACTIVITIES AND OPERATIONS OF THE ADMINISTRATION CENTRE’S SERVICES 

 
Supporting Activities 
Staff facilities and supporting activities will support all of the Department activity at the 
Administration Centre.  Supporting activities include: 
• Reception for meetings and workshops involving the public and community partners, and 

entry to the building by the public; scheduling of meeting and training/workshop rooms 
• Receiving Area for large items and supplies, receiving of mail and small packages (efficient 

function of the Mail Room) should be considered where budget allows. 
• Mail Room 
• Waste management ( For storage of Recycling Bins and Garbage Bags) 
• Staff facilities, such as lunch room, washrooms, showers and lockers 
• Copy Centre for all departmental large copying requirements 
Reception and Entry to the Building 

8 
 



All members of the public including community partners will enter the building through the main 
entrance and will be greeted by the receptionist and directed to their destination or the Waiting 
Area. 
• Meeting and workshop attendees will be directed to the appropriate meeting room (secure 

access to area for meeting rooms) or asked to wait in the entry waiting area until available. 
Receiving and Mail Room 
• All deliveries will be directed to the Reception area . 
• After received, items may be stored in a secure room within the receiving area until they can 

be distributed or could be stored in mail room within central Copy centre and later on 
transported to the appropriate locations.   

Supply and Record Storage 
• Supply (Bulk) storage will be accommodated in the Receiving Area to the central bulk 

storage. This will include periodic deliveries of office supplies or furniture and equipment and 
computer technology that could be transferred to central bulk storage or to the designated 
room or workstation. 

• Record (Filing) storage will be consolidated to a central storage room, and also possible by 
way of electronic records storage.  In a few cases, off-site storage also could be utilized.  

Management of Meeting and Training/Workshop Rooms 
• Medium sized meeting room used by staff and public will be available to all departments. 
• Provision for a large meeting rooms and training/workshop room will be a shared resource 

and will be centrally located and booked.  They will be available for use for internal meetings, 
meetings with community partners, and for public sessions. 

• As much as possible, rooms will be general use / multi-functional with complete A/V and 
presentation provisions. 

Staff Facilities 
• Staff coats and boots will be accommodated within coat closets or alcoves centrally where 

accessible by all adjacent departments. 
• Majority of staff currently brings their lunch.  The Lunchroom / Staff Lounge needs to be a 

relaxing retreat for social connection with colleagues and a refreshing place to eat lunch. 
 

8. ADJACENCIES MATRIX 
 The floor layout of an organization; represented by the locations and relationships of its 
components, must be designed to facilitate an efficient operation.  A design based on 
functional efficiencies combines both identified room to room and department to department 
relationships. 

9 
 



10
 

 



9. SPACE STANDARDS FOR KEY SPACE ELEMENTS 
 
To provide flexibility and the option to reallocate space over time; standardized generic spaces 
based on functional needs will be provided as much as possible.  This will apply to offices, 
workstations, and Meeting Rooms.   
 
Legislation and regulations will provide guidance for the accommodation of sufficient space for 
persons with disabilities throughout the building, in public and staff areas.  (See next section on 
accessibility) 
Standard spaces will be as follows (see illustrations in 9.1): 
 
Offices 
Enclosed offices will be provided for staff that routinely require an enclosed space to allow for 
confidentiality of information or discussions (from other staff or public) when use of a meeting 
room would not be practical.  Three generic offices will be: 

 
• Office C:  (150sf) - Enlarged office for staff who work alone; occasional meetings with 1-2 

other persons (Guest Chairs). 
• Office D:  (130sf) - Office for staff who routinely work alone; occasional meetings with 1-2 

other persons (Guest Chairs). 
• Office E:  (100sf) - Basic office for staff who routinely works alone and requires privacy;  

1 guest chairs. 
Workstations 
Workstations enclosed by partial height partitions (modular furniture) will be the standard 
accommodation for most staff.  Three generic sizes will be provided. 
• Workstation E2 (64sf): for staff whose primary responsibility requires large format drawings 

review area and more desk space but do not require an enclosed private office. 
• Workstation F (96sf): for staff whose primary responsibility requires meeting area or 

collaborative space, or review of drawings, and more desk space but do not require an 
enclosed private office. 

• Workstation G (48sf):  basic workstation for staff who require desk space. 
 

Customization of space will be kept to a minimum to ensure flexibility in the future. 
Due to the inflexibility of the existing building structure, some staff or support areas who have 
needed to move or are new, have not been allotted the required space as their job function 
dictates.  The goal will be to re-align workstation area with job function and propose support 
areas to maintain functionality of the entire building. 
 

11 
 



9.1 PROPOSED SPACE STANDARDS 
 
 

 
12 

 



9.2 STANDARD OFFICE & WORK SPACE (SPACE ALLOCATION COMPARISON)   
 
 
 
 
 
 

13 
 



10. CONSIDERATIONS FOR ORGANIZATION OF SPACE 
Zones of Space 
Space should be organized in zones of functionally related areas.  Zones will be designed as 
either accessible to the public via reception known as “Public” or restricted to staff only or 
invited persons known as “Restricted”. 
 
Public zones will consist of;  
• Main/public Entry, Reception at main entrance (with exception of Fire Department) 
• Waiting Area,  
• circulation areas and corridors 
• Meeting zone, 
• Public Washroom  
 
Restricted zones (staff only, and public with permission): 
• Council chamber & Meeting Room 
• Internal Department Work areas 
• Lunch Room & Servery 
• Staff Change Room, Showers & Lockers 
• Storage, Receiving & Mail Rooms 
• Server Rooms 

 
There should be minimal separation between clusters of offices and workstations in the 
Restricted Zones to allow reallocation of space between zones as needed in the future.  
Although workstations, offices, team rooms and shared support areas are listed by 
program/team in the Program Analysis, it would be preferable to plan them in relatively similar 
clusters so that rooms and spaces could be reallocated among teams as needs change. 
 
 

14 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

15 
 



11. SPACE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
The space requirements for the entire building are made up of three components: 
• Net area which is the actual usable space within rooms or room elements, such as offices, 

meeting rooms and workstations.  These individual areas are listed in the following table. 
• Internal circulation and interior walls which are needed to make the net areas into functional 

departments or components.  At this stage the component area is estimated by adding a 
factor to the total net area which reflects the type of use and sizes of rooms.   
Building areas which are needed to enclose the building, enter and exit the building, 
circulate through it, and provide for building minor mechanical, electrical and other 
infrastructure systems that are not already part of the space analysis in particular.  These will 
depend on the building height, floor configuration, and particular building systems and 
energy conservation measures. For a building such as this, an average component gross up 
factor of 1.25 to 1.30 would be suitable.   
The actual factor will be dependent on the layout of the areas and to some extent the 
configuration of the building. 

• As indicated in the Functional program Analysis, the Gross up factor for existing building is too 
low, that means there is not enough circulation space, as many rooms/offices are accessible 
only through another room or space, which is another reason why currently the existing 
building is not functioning to its full potential. 

• Design Contingency factor which relates to efficiency of design based on existing limitation 
and AODA/FADM accessibility factor to allow for special accessibility requirements beyond 
OBC minimum requirements. 
 

Applying gross up factors , Contingency and Accessibility factor to the preliminary estimate of 
net area in the section following would indicate that the township facility building would require 
about 1,955 building gross square meters (21,000 sf).This area will require review as options for 
planning the site and building configuration are investigated. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16 
 



11.1 FUNCTIONAL PROGRAM ANALYSIS 

 

17 
 



 

18 
 



 

19 
 



 

20 
 



 

21 
 



 
 

22 
 



11.2 FUNCTIONAL PROGRAM SUMMARY 
 

 
 

23 
 



 
 

24 
 



12. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
An increase in the demand for services, and programs has resulted in the need for a review of 
the existing facility to accommodate the needs of clients, their communities and staff. 
 
After investigating the site in Aug 2014, +VG (the Ventin Group Architects) submit the following 
recommendations to act as guidelines in the restoration, renovation and design work to follow:  
 

1. Improve adjacencies between Departments. 
2. Provide adequate number of Meeting Rooms. 
3. Provide efficient circulation and a barrier free and community friendly building. 
4. Provide a central storage/filing area with a mobile compact filing system. 
5. Relocate the Fire department large meeting room/training area closer to the 

Administration Building and public works (in place of last row of apparatus, pending 
on Fire department master plan) for convenience & efficient use of services. 

6. Provide a safe, healthy environment for staff & public. 
7. Provide a technologically equipped Administration Building that engages the 

Community. 
8. Maximize accessibility and present the building to be more functional for the public 

and the staff. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25 
 



APPENDICES 
APPENDIX-A 
STAFF PROJECTION, AS PROVIDED BY TOWNSHIP 

 
 
NOTE: This table does not include any recommendations that may be made as a result of the 
Recreation and Parks Master Plan and the Fire Plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26 
 



APPENDIX-B 
EXISTING BUILDING, DEPARTMENTAL AREA, PER DRAWINGS PROVIDED BY TOWNSHIP 

 
27 

 



SUPPLEMENT 

 

28 
 



1 
 

REPORT FIN-2015-021 
 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Mary Hasan, Director of Finance/Treasurer 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT: 2015 Grant Application Policy and Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy 
 File No. A09 GRA and A09 FEE 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
That Report FIN-2015-021 regarding the 2015 Grant Application Policy and Fee 
Reduction/Waiver Policy, be received; and 

That Council directs staff to proceed with holding a Public Meeting on June 18, 2015 at 
7:00 pm in the Council Chambers, Municipal Complex to obtain public input on the 
proposed Grant Application Policy and Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy as outlined in 
Schedule C and Schedule D respectively to Report FIN-2015-021; and 

That staff publish notice in the Puslinch Pioneer, Township website, and provide notice 
to previous funding recipients to advise of the Public Meeting; and 

That staff report back on the results of the Public Meeting; and     

That staff report back in 2016/2017 with regard to organizations under separate 
agreement. 

DISCUSSION 

Purpose  
 

The purpose of this report is to provide Council with a proposed Grant Application Policy 
and Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy as outlined in Schedule C and Schedule D to Report 
FIN-2015-021 respectively and to obtain direction from Council to proceed with holding 
a public meeting to solicit input on the proposed policies. 
  



2 
 

Background 
 
For grant requests, the Township of Puslinch currently sends letters to community 
organizations in advance of operating budget deliberations requesting certain financial 
information for consideration. This information is brought to Council for review and 
approved by Council through the budgeting process (Schedule F). 
 
For in-kind bookings, through Council Resolution Number 2015-043 which indicates  
“That Report FIN-2015-06 regarding In-Kind Bookings and Contributions be received; 
and that the community groups identified in Report FIN-2015-06 be provided gratuitous 
use of the rooms in 2015 based on 2014 usage of the Puslinch Community Centre and 
Optimist Recreation Centre; and that staff report back to Council on the development of 
a policy regarding the use of Township facilities by community groups and the 
associated fees prior to consideration of the 2016 Budget.” See Schedule E to Report 
FIN-2015-021 for the analysis performed on in-kind bookings and contributions in 2014.  
 
Council at its special meeting held on December 22, 2014 for the purpose of setting 
goals and objectives for the 2014 to 2018 Council term included the following items as 
goals/objectives for their term: 
 

• Development of a Grant Policy for the Spring of 2015 prior to consideration of the 
2016 budget; and 

• Development of a policy regarding the Use of Township Facilities by community 
groups for the Spring of 2015 prior to consideration of the 2016 budget. 

 
The draft Recreation and Parks Master Plan includes the following recommendations:  
 

• To adopt a community grant system policy (with an annual intake from a set pool 
of money within the Township’s budget) through which community organizations 
can apply for funds.  

• To adopt a policy relating to special requests for fee waivers for the purposes of 
equity and transparency.  

 
Considering that a fee reduction/waiver is essentially an informal grant program, it is 
important to view the Grant Application Policy in conjunction with the Fee 
Reduction/Waiver Policy.  

Benefits 
 
In the interest of consistency and clarity, there is merit in establishing a common 
approach to dealing with grant funding and in-kind contribution requests in the 
Township. The creation of these policies allows for Council to approve a series of policy 
guidelines from which all applications will be evaluated against.  
 
The newly proposed policies enhance accountability and transparency and provide a 
streamlined and consistent process in reviewing applications. This is in keeping with the 



3 
 

Township’s Accountability and Transparency Policy passed through By-law No. 60/08.  
Grant recipients will be accountable to the Township once funding is utilized through 
submission of post-event/year-end/project completion reports. These policies are 
included in Schedule C and D to Report FIN-2015-021. The Grant Application Form is 
detailed in Schedule G to Report FIN-2015-021. The Fee Reduction/Waiver Application 
Form is detailed in Schedule H to Report FIN-2015-021.  
 
Annual in-kind bookings and contributions amounted to $49,355 in 2014 as outlined in 
Report FIN-2015-06. The proposed Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy provides Council with 
numerous benefits to effectively administer fee reduction/waiver requests to eligible 
groups within the community utilizing a consistent and transparent framework. Groups 
who have not traditionally been aware of the opportunity for fee reductions/waivers will 
receive clear and concise information to determine their eligibility.  By allocating specific 
funds as part of the Township annual budget process, Council will have a clear 
understanding of the cost to provide this level of support to the invaluable network of 
groups and organizations in the community.  
 
Recovering expenses associated with the daily cost of operating recreation facilities is a 
fundamental component of an overall strategy to manage and maintain community 
assets for future use and enjoyment. The fee reduction/waiver policy establishes a 
framework for consistent application and evaluation criteria.   

Research 

Grant Application Policy: 
 
Township staff obtained policies and application forms from municipalities that have an 
established program including the County of Wellington, Town of Caledon, Town of 
Halton Hills, Town of Oakville and Township of Centre Wellington in order to 
appropriately define the framework going forward for applicants requesting funding from 
the Township. The summarized results of the review of these municipalities are outlined 
in Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-021. 

Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy: 
 
Township staff obtained fee reduction/waiver policies and application forms from 
municipalities that have an established program including the Town of Caledon, Town of 
Halton Hills, Municipality of Thames Centre and Municipality of Central Huron. The 
summarized results of the review of these municipalities are outlined in Schedule B to 
Report FIN-2015-021. 
 
The following municipalities were not reviewed for the fee reduction/waiver policy for the 
following reasons: 

• The County of Wellington does not have a policy for waiving or providing 
favourable fees for community groups and charitable organizations as they do 
not provide special rates to these organizations.  

• The Town of Oakville does not have a separate policy for fee reduction/waivers. 



4 
 

• Organizations in Centre Wellington requesting a reduction in the Township's fees 
for the purpose of Parks and Recreation facility rental/service are required to 
submit a written request directly to Council. 

Grant Funding and In-Kind Bookings and Contributions as a Percentage of Taxes 
Levied 
 
Table 1 below provides an analysis of grant funding and in-kind bookings and 
contributions as a percentage of taxes levied: 
 
Table 1: 
 

2015 
Figures 

Puslinch Wellington 
County 

Caledon Halton 
Hills 

Oakville Centre 
Wellington 

Thames 
Centre  

Central 
Huron 

Grant 
Budget 

$33.6K $52.9K $54.5K $16.5K $843.8K $52K $22K $40K 

In-Kind 
Budget 

$49.4K N/A  $25K $56K Note A Note A Note B Note A 

Tax 
Base 

$3.4M $84.5M $49.8M $40.8M  $165.1M $11M  $8.2M 5.8M 

% 2.46% 0.06% 0.16% 0.18% 0.51% 0.47% 0.27% 0.69% 
Avg. %        0.33% 

 
Note A – the 2015 in-kind bookings and contributions budget is included in the total 
2015 grant budget. 
 
Note B – An amount is not budgeted for in-kind bookings and contributions. 
 
Note: Based on discussions with the Director of Financial Services/Treasurer of 
the Municipality of Thames Centre, Council is in the process of potentially 
disbanding the Community Partnership Fund and the Waiver of Fees program 
due to significant budget restraints.  
 
Note: Based on discussions with the Director of Finance of the Municipality of 
Central Huron, the funds granted for the Central Huron Donation Fund are 
revenues obtained from the OLG Casino. 
 
The Township’s 2015 approved taxation levy based on 2015 Budget By-law No. 017/15 
is $3,366,369. The 2015 budgeted grants (excluding in-kind bookings and contributions) 
amounts to $33,575 as outlined in Schedule F to Report FIN-2015-021. The 2014 actual 
in-kind bookings and contributions amounted to $49,355 as outlined in Schedule E to 
Report FIN-2015-021. Therefore, the Township is currently providing grant and in-kind 
contribution funding of 2.5% of taxes levied.  
  



5 
 

Total Upset Limit of Funds 
 
It is recommended that a grant application policy and fee reduction/waiver policy include 
a combined upset limit of funding per organization per calendar year.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, where an organization is hosting a community event 
(excluding fundraising activities and events), funds available to the organization are 
limited to a maximum of $XXX per event capped at three (3) events per calendar year. 
 
Table 2 below includes the upset limits per calendar year for the municipal policies 
reviewed: 
 
Table 2: 
 

Upset Limit Wellington 
County 

Caledon Halton 
Hills 

Oakville Centre 
Wellington 

Thames 
Centre 

Central 
Huron 

Grants $2,000 No limit $5,000 No limit $5,000 No limit No limit 
In-Kind  N/A $2,500 No limit No limit Included above No limit $500 
Total $2,000 $2,500 $5,000 No limit $5,000 No limit $500 

Recommendations 

Combined Upset Limit Analysis 
 
Table 3 below includes a summary of combined upset limit amounts ranging from $750 
to $1,250 and their impact as a percentage of the Township’s 2015 tax base. The table 
also includes estimates of the amount of 2016 funding eligible to organizations that 
received previous grant funding and/or in-kind bookings based on the proposed Grant 
Application Policy and Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy.  
 
As noted in Table 1 above, the average of grant and in-kind contribution funding as a 
percentage of taxes levied is 0.33%. Establishing a combined upset limit of $750 would 
result in 1.09% of grant and in-kind contribution funding as a percentage of taxes levied 
as noted in Table 3 below. This is 0.75% higher than the average of the sample 
municipalities.  To be in line with the 0.33% indicated in Table 1 above, the Township 
would need to limit grant and in-kind contribution funding (including organizations under 
separate agreement) to $11,109 per year. 
  



6 
 

Table 3: 
 

 $ $ Combined Upset Limit $ 
- 2016 Proposed Policy Linkages 

Organizations 2014 In-
Kind 

2015  
Grant  $750 $1,000 $1,250  

Aberfoyle Agricultural  
Society 3,490 3,000 1,500 2,000 2,500 

Assumption of one (1) community 
event (excluding fundraising 
activities/events) based on past 
events, ie. Fall Fair. 

Aberfoyle Public 
School 1,927 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

It is proposed that educational 
institutions are not eligible for 
funding. See recommendation for 
Aberfoyle Public School below. 

Community Oriented 
Policing Centre 311 500 1,500 2,000 2,500 Assumption of one (1) community 

event based on past events.  
Crime Stoppers 
Guelph Wellington Nil Nil 750 1,000 1,250  

Friends of Mill Creek 1,260 1,250 750 1,000 1,250 In-kind bookings for facility space  
Guelph Community 
Health Centre 
(Playgroup) 

4,520 Nil 4,520 4,520 4,520 Organization under separate 
agreement – see below. 

Junior Garden Club 497 Nil 750 1,000 1,250 In-kind bookings for facility space 
Kiwanis Music 
Festival Nil 100 750 1,000 1,250  

Mill Creek 848 Nil 750 1,000 1,250 In-kind bookings for facility space 
Mindful RemedEase Nil Nil 750 1,000 1,250  

Morriston United 
Church 1,650 Nil Nil Nil Nil 

It is proposed that groups or 
organizations of a religious nature 
are not eligible for funding. 

Optimist Club of 
Puslinch 15,739 Nil 3,000 4,000 5,000 

Assumption of three (3) community 
events (excluding fundraising 
activities/events) based on past 
events, ie. Winter Classic 
Tournament, Santa Claus Parade, 
Canada Day Pancake Breakfast. 

Puslinch Historical 
Society – Library 
Rental 

5,000 Nil 5,000 5,000 5,000 Organization under separate 
agreement – see below. 

Puslinch Lake 
Conservation 
Association 

Nil 25,000 750 1,000 1,250  

Puslinch Minor 
Soccer Club 1,034 Nil 750 1,000 1,250 In-kind bookings for facility space 



7 
 

 $ $ Combined Upset Limit $ 
- 2016 Proposed Policy Linkages 

Organizations 2014 In-
Kind 

2015  
Grant  $750 $1,000 $1,250  

Senior’s Community 
Event (Euchre) 1,243 Nil Nil Nil Nil Note C 

Sunrise Therapeutic 
Riding & Learning 
Centre 

Nil 2,500 750 1,000 1,250  

Wellington County 
Farm and Home 
Safety Association 

Nil 125 750 1,000 1,250  

Wellington County 
Plowmen’s 
Association 

Nil 100 750 1,000 1,250  

Whistle Stop Daycare 11,838 Nil 11,838 11,838 11,838 Organization under separate 
agreement – see below. 

Badenoch 
Community Centre Nil 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 Organization under separate 

agreement – see below. 
Grand Total 82,930 36,608 41,358 46,108  
% of 2015 Tax Base  2.46% 1.09% 1.23% 1.37%  

 
Note C: Note that the estimates of 2016 funding in Table 3 above are preliminary. 
There are specific applicant qualification criteria that must be met for an organization to 
be eligible for funding and requires a detailed review of pertinent documentation 
submitted by the applicant.  

Organizations under Separate Agreement 
 
The following organizations have a separate agreement with the Township for the use 
of facilities for nominal consideration: 
 

• Badenoch (term of lease agreement is to December 31, 2026) 
• Whistle Stop Daycare (facility use agreement expires June 19, 2015 and is 

renewed annually) 
• Guelph Community Health Centre (Playgroup) (facility use agreement expires 

June 23, 2015 and is renewed annually) 
• Puslinch Historical Society (term of lease agreement is to September 15, 2015) 

 
It is proposed that those organizations that have entered into an agreement for the use 
of a Township facility at a nominal rate are not eligible to receive funding under the 
Grant Application Policy and the Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy.  
 
The following organizations have a separate agreement with the Township for the use 
of facilities at negotiated rates. 



8 
 

 
• YMCA-YWCA – Puslinch Power Camp Agreement (agreement expires August 

21, 2014 and is renewed annually) 
• Aberfoyle Farmers’ Market (agreement expires on February 1, 2017) 

 
It is recommended that a separate review be conducted for organizations that are 
currently under separate agreement to establish fair and consistent evaluation criteria 
and fees in 2016/2017. Further, it is recommended that no additional organizations be 
eligible for entering into a separate agreement for gratuitous use of Township owned 
facilities until such a review is completed. 

 Aberfoyle Public School 
 
Aberfoyle Public School utilized the Township’s facilities at a nominal consideration in 
2014 as per Schedule E to Report FIN-2015-021. The Township ’s agreement with the 
Wellington County Board of Education (now known as the Upper Grand District School 
Board) dated the 2nd day of December 1996 expired. It is recommended by the 
Township’s insurers that Township staff work with the Upper Grand District School 
Board to develop a new agreement for the use of Township facilities.  

Other Contributions 
 
The practice in the past has been to provide photocopies and mailings free of charge on 
behalf of certain community organizations. It is recommended that the costs to the 
Township of providing free photocopies and mailings on behalf of certain community 
organizations be encompassed in the organization’s total upset limit of funding per 
calendar year. See costs below: 
 
Photocopies - $0.25 per page as per the Township’s User Fee By-law No. 076/14 
Per Mailing - postage - $0.77; envelope - $0.06 
 
The practice in the past has been for the Township to pay for the advertising costs 
associated with the Santa Claus Parade and Aberfoyle Fall Fair. There have also been 
requests by community groups to waive fees associated with ball diamond and rink 
board advertising as well as sign rentals at the Puslinch Community Centre (electronic 
sign). It is recommended that the fees associated with these be encompassed in the 
organization’s total upset limit of funding per calendar year. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
The 2014 actual in-kind bookings and contributions amounted to $49,355 as outlined in 
Report FIN-2015-06.  
 
The Township of Puslinch maintains a budget for grants in account number 01-0100-
4600 and in the Badenoch Cost Centre in account number 01-0150-4325. See below for 
further details.  



9 
 

 
Account 
Number Description 

2014 
Budget 

2014 
Actual 

2015 
Budget 

01-0100-4600 Grants $32,800 $32,925 $32,575 
01-0150-4325 Badenoch Comm Ctr Grant $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 
Total  $33,800 $33,925 $33,575 

 
APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 
Accountability and Transparency Policy passed through By-law No. 60/08 
 
Municipal Act, 2001  
 
Directly from the Municipal Act, 2001 regarding Grants: 
 
Assistance prohibited 
Despite any Act, a municipality shall not assist directly or indirectly any manufacturing 
business or other industrial or commercial enterprise through the granting of bonuses 
for that purpose. 2001, c. 25, s. 106 (1). 
 
General power to make grants 
Despite any provision of this or any other Act relating to the giving of grants or aid by a 
municipality, subject to section 106, a municipality may make grants, on such terms as 
to security and otherwise as the council considers appropriate, to any person, group or 
body, including a fund, within or outside the boundaries of the municipality for any 
purpose that council considers to be in the interests of the municipality. 2001, c. 25, 
s. 107 (1) 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Schedule A: Other Municipal Grant Application Policies 
 
Schedule B: Other Municipal Fee Reduction/Waiver Policies 
 
Schedule C: Proposed Grant Application Policy  
 
Schedule D: Proposed Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy   

 
Schedule E: Report FIN-2015-06 – In-Kind Bookings and Contributions 

Schedule F: 2015 Approved Grant Allocations 

Schedule G: Grant Application Form  

Schedule H: Fee Reduction/Waiver Application Form  



Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-021
Other Municipal Grant Application Policies

County of Wellington Town of Caledon Town of Halton Hills
Purpose Establish a set of guidelines to provide 

financial assistance to not-for-profit 
organizations by means of a grant.

Support organizations with goals and objectives that support the Town's Community 
Based Strategic Plan and Vision. 

Provide support to individuals, community organizations, groups and businesses 
that maintain and improve the quality of life for residents by providing facilities 
and services.

Applicant 
Qualification/
Criteria

1.) The applicant must be operating as a not-
for-profit organization.
2.) The applicant must have a formal 
organizational structure (ie. a Board of 
Directors, Committee Structure, or a 
structure similar in nature).
3.) The applicant must be providing services, 
products, etc. that are benefiting the County 
and its residents.

Priority will be given to groups or organizations that are aligned with the following 
criteria:
1.) Community-based and fairly represent their own interest and those of the 
communities which they serve.
2.) Maintain a historical and community link between our agricultural, rural and 
urban communities.
3.) Must be in adherence with the requirements of the Ontario Government, 
including the Ontario Human Rights Code

1.) Demonstrate the aims, objectives and activities are of benefit to the 
community and support the strategic priorities of Council.
2.) Criteria to evaluate proposals: benefits the majority of residents; affordable, 
accessible, inclusive and diverse; demonstrates collaboration, positive 
community engagement and civic pride; promotes volunteerism, participation and 
leadership development; new or complimentary to existing services; facilitates 
self-sufficiency and/or sustainability; promotes efficient/effective use of municipal 
resources; fosters a healthy, safe and active community.
3.) Must be in good standing with the Town.

Applicants Not 
Eligible

See eligibility discussion above. For profit organizations; foundations that raise funds for another organization and 
their associated groups or agencies; groups or organizations of a religious nature; 
groups or organizations affiliated with any political party or event; hospitals, hospital 
foundations and hospital auxiliary groups or agencies; educational institutions 
including universities, colleges, schools and associated auxiliary groups; 
organizations not in good financial standing with the Town or in litigation with the 
Town.

1.) faith organizations; political affiliations; service clubs; hospitals, clinic based or 
medical treatment services; educational institutions; government (federal, 
provincial, regional, municipal). 
2.) Consideration may be given to the organizations noted above for 
activities/events that support the strategic priorities of Council as contained in the 
Town's strategic plan and municipal assistance policy.
3.) Fundraising activities/events are only eligible when 100% of the net funds 
raised are directed back to a Town facility, program and/or service.

Application 
Requirements

1.) Must be submitted to the Clerk by the 
specified date and time as printed in the 
application page (November 30th).
2.) Must be completed in full, with all 
requested information attached 
3.) A copy of operating budget and recent 
financial statements for the 
organization/project.
4.) A letter of reference upon request.

1.) An operating budget for the organization's operating year in which the funds 
would be utilized; if not available, most recent operating budget is required.
2.) Previous years' financial statements (reviewed or audited); if not available, most 
recent financial statements are required.
3.) Complete and submit an official application form in accordance with guidelines 
and deadlines
4.) An organization applying for multiple grants must complete an application form 
for each separate funding request.
5.) Not mandatory but invited to present grant requests to Council at a future 
announced date after all of the above information is provided (maximum 10 minute 
presentation to Council)
6.) Deadline - October 31st of a given year

1.) Projects must present a detailed budget including actual and projected 
revenue and expenses; copies of invoices are required with submission for 
funding; proposals for major initiatives must be received 6 months in advance of 
the proposed initiative to facilitate the review process; initiatives must take place 
in the Town and serve Town residents; initiatives must have community-wide 
benefit and not duplicate the efforts of existing initiatives/events.
2.) Proposals will be reviewed by staff for accuracy, completeness and 
compliance with the Municipal Assistance Policy and Procedures; only complete 
proposals will be forwarded under a staff report to the Community Affairs 
Committee of Council for consideration at the designated meetings (see 
Deadlines for Applications.);  community affairs committee of Council may 
request a presentation of the applicant's proposal.

Grant 
Categories and 
Funding 
Allocation

None 1.) Sustaining/Continuing Support - grants for organizations that are community 
based and fairly represent both their own interest and those of the communities in 
which they serve. Priority will be given to organizations that maintain a historical and 
community link between our agricultural, rural and urban communities. No 
guarantee on future funding regardless of past funding received.
2.) Project-Based Support/One-Time - Grants are to be given only to organizations 
for the purpose of a specific and measurable project or program.  Priority will be 
given to organizations that maintain a historical and community link between our 
agricultural, rural and urban communities.
3.) Special Event Activity Support - Grants are to be given as "seed" money. Funds 
are allocated to provide start-up funding for a new organization, or a new program 
within an already existing organization, for activity deemed to be of significant value 
to the community at a large.

all proposals are subject to available funds
1.) Marketing/Promotion 
2.) Special Purposes, Projects or Start-up Costs 

 10



Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-021
Other Municipal Grant Application Policies

County of Wellington Town of Caledon Town of Halton Hills
Requirements 
after Approval of 
Grant Request

No requirements. 1.) Recognizing the Town's grant contribution at the organization's event or activity 
and acknowledging funding on all promotional material (if the Town logo is used, 
approval must be obtained from the Communication Department prior to printing of 
the promotional material).
2.) Recipients awarded a grant for a specific project or event are required to submit 
a final report within 3 months of project/event completion. The report must evaluate 
the outcomes of the events, as well as identify how the project/event met its goals 
and objectives. Such reports may be used in awarding grants in subsequent years. 
Must identify and advise of any surplus funds. Surplus funds may be required to be 
returned to the Town and/or deducted from future grant considerations.
3.) Recipients awarded a grant for sustaining/continuing support are required to 
submit a year-end report which evaluates how the funding was utilized and how it 
contributed to overall goals and objectives of the organization.
4.) Any grant recipient that does not comply with the requirements may not receive 
future grant funding.

1.) Successful proposals will acknowledge the Town's support in all 
communications and promotions.
2.) Funds received are to be used as specified by the Community Affairs 
Committee of Council
3.) All unused funds will be returned
4.) Adherence to all applicable municipal by-laws, policies and procedures is 
required

Threshold Community Programmes and Community 
Events that apply for a grant will be allotted a 
maximum of $2,000 per application. All 
requests over $2,000 will be considered by 
the Administration, Finance and Personnel 
Committee as a special grant request.

No limit – based on request and past history Special Purposes, Projects or Start-up Costs - a one-time start up grant is 
available for new initiatives/events which have community-wide benefit. The 
Town may provide a grant up to 25% of project costs, to a maximum of $5,000. 
Request over $5,000 will be referred to Council by the Community Affairs 
Committee of Council.

Special 
Exemptions

1.) Exempt from the formal application 
process: All Agricultural Societies within 
Wellington County; Wellington 4H; 
Wellington Farm and Home Safety; 
Wellington County Plowmens Association; 
Wellington Soil and Crop Improvement; 
Wellington County Cattlemen's Association 
(these organizations are included in the 
County's 2015 budget figure of $52,900 for 
the grant application program).
2.) In order to apply for a grant, a letter must 
be sent to the County from the exempted 
organization(s). The letter must identify the 
need for a grant for the year in question and 
the general intent of use of the funds. These 
letters must be received by November 30th 
annually before any grant funds are to be 
forwarded to the organization(s).
3.) The Committee will review the 
Organizations listed every year. Any 
changes (additions or deletions) to this 
section will be communicated to the affected 
Organizations in writing. 

None None 

 11



Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-021
Other Municipal Grant Application Policies

Town of Oakville Township of Centre Wellington
Purpose Acknowledges and supports the enhancement and preservation of a positive quality of life for its 

citizens. One means of achieving this goal is the provision of financial assistance through grants, 
donations, loans, fee assistance or in-kind services to organizations, community groups and individuals 
for purposes which support the town’s corporate goals and strategy. 

Provide financial assistance to not-for-profit organizations by means of a grant to enhance the overall 
well-being of the community.

Applicant 
Qualification/
Criteria

1.) Community assistance funding is available only to Oakville-based, non-profit volunteer community 
groups which exist for the purpose of providing municipally-related programs, services or projects 
specifically to the residents of Oakville subject to criteria and limitations contained herein.
2.) Organizations requesting funding for a purpose which meets the criteria of a funding opportunity 
offered by another level of government will be referred to that funding source. Assistance received 
should not be considered as the primary source of funding. The applicant must show that there has 
been exploration of other financial support mechanisms (i.e. fundraising) prior to making the request 
and adequate volunteer support.
3.Not-for-profit community group or organization (registered as a charitable organization by Revenue 
Canada) initiating or delivering programs and services to the municipality. 
4. Formal organizational structure with an active Board of Directors and/or Executive 
committee/Officers.
5. Based in Oakville, with a majority of members being Oakville residents.
6. Services, programs and activities that primarily benefit Oakville citizens.
7. Demonstrate the fiscal viability and accountability of the organization.

1.) Not-for-profit organization; independent volunteer board of directors, meet regularly, maintain 
appropriate minutes and recordings of proceedings; based in the Township, majority of members 
residents; membership and programs open to all Township citizens, and services, programs and 
activities benefit primarily to Township citizens; programs or services serve clearly identified community 
needs not already adequately addressed by another organization, be it government, corporate or 
another not-for-profit organization; existence for one or more years; community commitment to 
programs through participation in organization/attendance at functions sponsored by organization; 
support from other sources than public funds (ie. through ticket sponsorships or membership sales); not 
in arrears with Township.
2.) Council may grant special consideration to entities that do not meet the eligibility requirements but 
are unique in nature and fulfill a specific need in the community.
3.) Criteria: merit and achievement; professional standards; community service and participation; fiscal 
and overall accountability of the applicant; administrative accountability; responsiveness to existing 
community need; degree of accessibility; economic impact. 

Applicants Not 
Eligible

Religious organizations for sacred or sectarian purposes; political parties, ridings, associations and 
candidates; individuals; donations to charitable causes; debt retirement; as replacement for other 
funding sources; commercial and/or third-party fundraising individuals; coalitions such as ratepayer or 
tenant/landlord associations, or to support programs or services geared specifically to these groups; on 
a retroactive basis for purposes which have already occurred; travel

Profit oriented organizations; individuals; marketing, travel or accommodation, uniforms, personal 
equipment, banquets, trophies or entertainment; rent (excluding Township facilities), utilities or debt 
repayment; attendance at conferences, workshops or seminars; request for funding prior year deficits; 
failed to provide satisfactory reports, including financial statements, as to the success of the previous 
year and specifically with respect to the allocation of grant funds; requests for grants to an individual, or 
an individual group that is controlled by a parent organization (parent organization should apply 
instead); organizations that receive other subsidies from the Township; service clubs, except under the 
Specific Annual Grants category.

Application 
Requirements

All requests for community assistance funding shall be by application, directed to the Commissioner of 
Corporate Services and Treasurer or his/her delegate, and contain:
Proof of registration as a charitable organization with Revenue Canada or status as a Not for Profit 
organization (NPO); Organization structure with Board of Director’s names, positions, and phone 
numbers; Information about the organization and how its programs or services benefit the community; 
A statement of the organization’s goals and objectives, constitution and by-laws or, operating 
guidelines; amount financial assistance requested, including where the funds will be used; a current 
business plan/budget as well as audited financial statements for the immediately preceding year; 
completed application form

Preparation and submission of operating budgets and complete financial statements (both balance 
sheet and income statement including comparative information from previous year); verification of non-
profit/charitable status (ie. incorporating documents, constitution, by-laws,etc.); listing of executive 
officers of the organization; two letters of reference at arm's length to applicant. 

Requirements 
after Approval of 
Grant Request

Community funding assistance may not be used for purposes other than the purposes approved by 
Council. If such assistance is used for a purpose other than that approved by Council, it must be repaid. 
An organization receiving other than in-kind contributions will be required to provide verification through 
financial statements or receipts that the financial assistance provided was expended according to the 
resolution of support approved by Council. Community assistance recipients will be required to 
acknowledge the support of the Town in all advertising, publicity, programs, signage and plaques 
relating to the project for which funds were provided. The recipient may not represent the town as a 
partner, or hold the town responsible for any obligations relating to the project.

Acknowledge the support of the Township of Centre Wellington in all printed materials; provide a written 
statement of use of funds within two months of the event/program/service. Organizations will not be 
considered for future grant funding until all required reports are received by the Township. Grant 
Application Exempt Organizations awarded Specific Annual Grants are exempt from this requirement. 
Funds to be used for the purposes described in the application. Council must be informed if the project 
is delayed or changed substantially for any reason. In the event the project does not go forward, the 
applicant will return those funds granted for the proposed project.

 12



Schedule A to Report FIN-2015-021
Other Municipal Grant Application Policies

Town of Oakville Township of Centre Wellington
Threshold Budget of $964,300 in grants in 2015.  This includes recreation subsidies, heritage grants, sports 

grants, cultural grants as well as BIA support for community events.  $120,500 of the amount relates to 
Seniors Tax Reductions and Registered Charity Rebates.

Grant funds available to an organization in a budget year are limited to a maximum of $5,000 which 
includes requests for subsidized Township parks and recreation facility rentals.

Special 
Exemptions

None The following organizations have been approved by Council for annual funding without application 
($20.1K total)- Fergus and District Horticultural Society - $1,650; Elora and Salem Horticultural Society - 
$1,950; Elora Lions Club (Elora Santa Claus Parade) - $1,600; Elora Cataract Trailway Association - 
$5,000; Fergus Lions Club (Fergus Santa Claus Parade) - $1,700; Royal Canadian Legion Wreaths - 
$450; Wellington County Farm and Home Safety Association - $500; Senior Summer Games - $750; 
Ponsonby Recreation Club - $1,500; Centre Wellington Food Bank - $5,000
In order to be eligible, a letter must be received by the Township annually prior to August 31st before 
any grant funds are to be considered from the exempt organization identifying the need for the grant 
and the general intent of use of the funds. If the organization wants to submit a request for increased 
funding, must identify the need and the amount of increase within the required letter noted above. The 
budget committee will review the grant application exempt organizations listed above annually in 
September during preliminary annual budget process. Any changes will be communicated to the 
affected organizations in writing prior to the grant application process advertisement.

Grant 
Categories and 
Funding 
Allocation

None 1.) Performing/Visual Arts ($20K budget) - enhance quality of life for residents by fostering and 
strengthening the arts and culture, supporting artistic excellence and stimulating wider community 
appreciation and participation.
2.) Special Events ($5K budget) - enhance the quality of life for residents by fostering and strengthening 
special events and stimulating wider community appreciation and participation.
3.) Social/Environmental Organizations ($6K budget) - enhance the quality of life by fostering, 
strengthening and stimulating wider community appreciation and participation in social and/or 
environmental activities.
4.) Specific Annual Grants ($20.1K budget) - enhance the quality of life by fostering, strengthening and 
stimulating wider community appreciation and participation in the community. 

 13



Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-021
Other Municipal Fee Reduction/Waiver Policies

Town of Caledon Town of Halton Hills Municipality of Thames Centre Municipality of Central Huron
Purpose The Town supports special events planned by community groups 

based in Caledon and acknowledges that local events celebrate and 
strengthen communities, fostering a spirit of involvement, learning, 
sharing and giving.

Provide the process, categories of 
eligibility and support documents related 
to submitting a proposal for waiver of 
municipal fees. 

Guide employees, Council, Not-for-
Profit organizations and the public 
on how the municipality will handle 
special requests to waive or 
reduce fees at Municipal Facilities.

Create consistency and parameters around the waiving or 
reduction of fees to such parties. To streamline the fee waiver 
process and provide a consistent approach in the information that 
is provided for consideration. To consistently record the revenue 
for the parks and facilities as they are utilized.

Applicant 
Qualification/
Eligibility

1.) Groups must exist for the benefit of Caledon and provide 
services that are available to residents of Caledon. Groups eligible 
are Caledon-based groups that are not-for-profit, volunteer-based 
organizations. 
2.) Financial Reponsibility - must demonstrate capability of carrying 
out its objectives and meeting its financial obligations
3.) Constitution and By-laws - must operate in an open and 
democratic manner through the holding of annual membership 
meetings and the election of an executive from the general 
membership; annual general meetings must be advertised to the 
group's membership no less than 30 days prior to the meeting; all 
members must be eligible to vote; groups must adhere to the 
Human Rights Code.
4.) Majority of voting members of executive/board must be residents 
or ratepayers of the Town.
5.) Consideration for event funding will be given if the event meets 
the following: the event has a broad appeal, the event is free or a 
low cost to participants and attendees, the event is organized with 
community partners. 

1.) For fundraising activities/events 
facility fee waivers are only eligible when 
100% of the net funds raised are 
directed back to a Town facility, program 
or service. 
2.) Events should be approved 
community-wide events where 
admissions are free. 
3.) This application is for rental fees for 
municipally owned or controlled facilities.
4.) Groups registered with the Town who 
conduct an Annual General Meeting 
where the election of officers takes 
place. Some restrictions may apply.
5.) Community events where an 
admission charge is levied, fees may be 
waived when costs are not recovered 
due to extenuating circumstances.

1.) Not for profit organizations
2.) Thames Centre Council will 
make a decision to approve or 
deny a request utilizing the 
following criteria: availability of the 
venue; the potential for 
detrimental noise impacts of the 
event on nearby residents and 
businesses; other events 
scheduled; adherence to all 
relevant municipal policies. 

Operate as non-for-profit; based in the Municipality of Central 
Huron; School Groups; activity does not duplicate an existing 
program or activity; activity will provide benefit to the 
community/public; Event/activity/function will occur within the 
Municipal boundaries at a designated Municipal facility or park; 
Organizations must demonstrate financial need.

Applicants Not 
Eligible

Fundraising events Fundraising activites/events; costs for 
personnel services are ineligible for 
Municipal Assistance; third party fees; 
request for relief from licences, 
development charges, building permits; 
requests for relief from fees not 
controlled by the municipality.

On occasion, Thames Centre 
Council or staff receives requests 
to raise money for a cause, to 
sponsor a particular organization, 
or to help underwrite the cost of a 
trip by a class, a club or a sports 
organization by making a financial 
contribution to the organization. 
The municipality shall not make 
financial contributions to support 
organizations or clubs.

Private events such as weddings, birthdays, anniversary parties, 
engagement parties, etc.; for-profit organizations, individuals or 
groups; events or activities that are not open to the general public; 
organizations based outside the Municipality of Central Huron 
(unless the demonstrated benefits are primarily to the residents of 
the Municipality of Central Huron); projects or organizations that 
did not fulfill their obligation during previous events or activities for 
which park or facility fees were waived or reduced; Any activity, 
event or program that contravenes the Municipality’s existing 
policies.

Requirements 
after Approval of 
Grant Request

All approved events must acknowledge the Town in all advertising 
pieces (must be provided to and approved by Parks and Recreation 
prior to event date). Must provide a post event report to the Parks 
and Recreation Department designate within 90 days of event date. 
This will include a detailed financial report and attendance numbers. 

Post event financial statement must be 
submitted to secure the fee waiver(s).

Acknowledge municipality in all 
materials and announcements 
about the event.

Advertisement of events must include acknowledgement of the 
Municipality's contribution.

 14



Schedule B to Report FIN-2015-021
Other Municipal Fee Reduction/Waiver Policies

Town of Caledon Town of Halton Hills Municipality of Thames Centre Municipality of Central Huron
Application 
Requirements

1.) The event must utilize the Town's facilities or services. The 
event must comply with Town requirements for events and facility 
rentals including necessary insurance, permits and approvals in 
place within the required timelines. All rentals are subject to facility 
service/availability. Community groups will be required to apply for 
funding on an annual basis. 
2.) Annual financial statements must be included with the 
application.
3.) A constitution must be submitted with the application.
4.) All applicants must be received a minimum of 6 months prior to 
the event date. 

1.) Proposals reviewed by staff for 
accuracy, completeness and compliance 
2.) Only complete proposals will be 
forwarded under a staff report to the 
Community Affairs Committee of Council 
for consideration at the designated 
meetings. 
3.) Request for waiver of municipal fees 
must be received prior to activity/event 
4.) Community Affairs Committee of 
Council may request a presentation of 
the applicant's proposal.
5.) Special consideration may be granted 
to proposals at the discretion of the 
Community Affairs Committee of 
Council.

1.) Consider providing grants to 
not-for-profit organizations to 
support services they provide to 
Thames Centre community 
through the Community 
Partnership Fund provided the 
application is submitted by the last 
Friday in October annually. 
2.) Organization is required to 
indemnify the municipality from 
and against any and all injuries 
and claims for damages incurred 
as a result of their use of the 
Municipal facility. 

1.) Any approval given for the reduction or waiver of fees will only 
be applied to a single event. Any future or ongoing (annual) events 
will require further applications to be submitted.
2.) Community groups, individuals or organizations that wish to be 
considered for waiving or reduction of rental fees for parks and 
facilities must apply in writing to the Clerk’s Department using the 
detailed application form. Applications must be submitted to the 
Clerk’s Department a minimum of 60 days prior to the event for 
consideration.
3.) The application will be reviewed by the Clerk and Facilities 
Manager for eligibility and assessed based on the application 
provided. If the Clerk and Facilities Manager are unable to approve 
the application because the request falls outside eligibility criteria, 
the applicant has the option to make a formal request to Council 
for consideration. Council will then, through resolution at a Regular 
Council meeting, make the final decision with regard to approval, 
partial approval or denial of the waiver or reduction of fees 
request.

Threshold 1.) Events hosted by community groups up to a maximum of $2,500 
per calendar year regardless of the number of events hosted. 
Required to apply on a per event basis. 
2.) Requests exceeding $2,500 require the host group to delegate 
to Council. Written requests shall be received by the Parks and 
Recreation Department staff and be administered on a first-come-
first served basis subject to approved annual budget. The program 
and its funding shall be reviewed annually as part of the Town's 
budget process. The amount of funding awarded will be subject to 
availability within the annual budget.

All proposals are subject to available 
funds.

No limit The maximum allotment of fees to be waived will be $500 per 
group, per annum and will be determined after review of the 
completed application form by the Clerk and Facilities Manager.

 15



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule C to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

1 
 

 

 
 
TITLE:  GRANT APPLICATION POLICY  
 
DATE:   May 6, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  GRANT APPLICATION POLICY  

File No. A09 GRA 
 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
To establish a set of guidelines for providing support to not-for-profit organizations that 
maintain and improve the quality of life for residents of the Township of Puslinch 
(“Township”). 
 
2.0 Applicant Qualifications 
 
Organizations applying for funding must meet the following qualifications:   
 

• The organization must be operating as a not-for-profit organization. 
• The applicant must have a formal organizational structure (ie. a Board of 

Directors, Committee Structure, or a structure similar in nature) and hold regular 
meetings. 

• The agency or group is a Puslinch-based organization or an organization that 
benefits Township residents.  The service or project provided by the group 
provides a unique benefit to the residents of the Township. 

• The organization must be able to demonstrate that the funding assistance 
requested from the Township supplements funding the organization has received 
through other sources and its own fundraising efforts.  

• The applicant must be able to demonstrate that there is volunteer involvement in 
the day to day provision of its services. 

• The applicant must show that the service or project is needed and not in conflict 
with a similar service provided by another organization in the community.  

• The applicant must demonstrate financial need and should indicate the impact on 
the activity that will take place if the funding is not received. 

 
The following organizations are not eligible for funding: 
 

• Groups or organizations of a religious nature. 
• Groups or organizations affiliated with any political party or event. 
• Individuals, commercial organizations, and coalitions such as ratepayer 

associations.  



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule C to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

2 
 

• Hospitals, hospital foundations and hospital auxiliary groups or agencies. 
• Educational institutions including universities, colleges, schools and associated 

auxiliary groups. 
• Organizations not in good financial standing with the Township or in litigation with 

the Township. 
• Organizations who did not meet the requirements or fulfill their obligations of a 

previous grant application or fee reduction/waiver application. 
• Organizations that have entered into an agreement for the use of a municipally 

owned or controlled facility at a nominal rate. 
 
3.0 Funding Criteria 
 
The following requests are not eligible for funding: 
 

• Fundraising activities and events. 
• Donations to charitable causes. 
• Travel or accommodations, uniforms, personal equipment, banquets, 

entertainment. 
• Attendance at conferences, workshops or seminars. 
• Personnel costs. 
• Retroactive costs for purposes which have already occurred.  
• Funding of prior year deficits. 
• Political campaigns, parties or events. 

 
4.0 Criteria  
 
The following criteria will be used to evaluate grant applications submitted to the 
Township: 
 

• Demonstrates collaboration, positive community engagement and civic pride 
• Promotes volunteerism, participation and leadership development 
• Fosters a healthy, safe and active community  
• Fiscal and overall accountability 
• Responsiveness to existing community need 

 
5.0 Categories of Funding 
 
Category 1 – Sustaining/Continuing Support 
 
Grants for organizations that are community-based and fairly represent both their own 
interest and those of the community in which they serve. There is no guarantee on 
future funding regardless of past funding received. Services, programs and activities 
must demonstrate a benefit to the majority of residents.  
 



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule C to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

3 
 

The following costs are eligible for funding: 
 

• Marketing or advertising costs including fees associated with ball diamond, rink 
board and sign rental advertising. 

• Photocopy costs 
• Mailing costs including postage and envelopes 

 
Category 2 – Project-Based/One Time/Start-Up Support 
 
Grants are to be given as “seed” money. Funds are allocated to provide start-up funding 
for a new not-for-profit organization, or a new program within an already existing not-for-
profit organization, for an activity deemed to be of significant value to the community at 
large.  
 
Category 3 – Community Event Support  
 
Grants are to be given to organizations for the purpose of a community event that 
benefits the majority of residents. Examples include the Santa Claus Parade, Fall Fair, 
and the Canada Day Pancake Breakfast and Fireworks. Note, for the use of a Township 
owned facility at a reduced or waived fee, refer to the Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy. 
 
6.0 Application Requirements  
 
The following items are required as part of the grant application process: 
 

• The grant application must be submitted to the attention of the Finance 
Department by 2:00 pm on the last business day of September. 

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 
Attention: Grant Application Program 

• The grant application form must be completed in full with all requested 
information attached. Only complete and accurate proposals will be forwarded 
under a staff report to Council for consideration at the Operating Budget meeting.  

• Verification of not-profit/charitable status (ie. incorporating documents, 
constitution, by-laws, etc.). This is a requirement for the initial application only. 

• Organization structure with Board of Directors’ or Executive Officers’ names and 
positions. 

• An operating budget for the organization’s operating year in which the funds 
would be utilized; if not available, most recent operating budget is required. 

• Previous years’ financial statements (reviewed or audited); if not available, most 
recent financial statements are required.  

• An organization applying for multiple grants must complete an application form 
for each separate funding request. 



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 
  Schedule C to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

4 
 

• Invited to present grant requests to Council at a future announced date. This is 
not mandatory. 

 
7.0 Conditions of Funding 

 
• Grant funding assistance may not be used for purposes other than the purposes 

described in the application.  
• Recipients awarded a grant for a specific project or event are required to submit 

a final report within three (3) months of project/event completion. The report must 
include a financial statement and/or receipts.   

• Recipients awarded a grant for sustaining/continuing support are required to 
submit a year-end report within three (3) months of the end of the fiscal period 
(December 31st of a given year) which outlines how the funding was utilized and 
how it contributed to the overall goals and objectives of the organization. 

• Adherence to all applicable municipal by-laws, policies and procedures is 
required. 

• Organizations will not be considered for future grant funding until all required 
reports are received by the Township’s Finance Department. Any grant recipient 
that does not comply with the requirements may not receive future grant funding.  
 

8.0 Maximum of Funds Available 
 

Funds available to an organization are limited to a maximum of $XXX per organization 
per calendar year which includes requests for fee reductions/waivers. The granting of 
financial assistance in any year is not to be regarded as a commitment by the Township 
to continue such assistance in future years. 
 
Notwithstanding the above, where an organization is hosting a community event 
(excluding fundraising activities and events), funds available to the organization are 
limited to a maximum of $XXX per event capped at three (3) events per calendar year. 
 
9.0 Attachments 
 

• Grant Application Form 
 



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 

Schedule D to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

1 
 

 

 
 
TITLE:  FEE REDUCTION/WAIVER POLICY 
 
DATE:   May 6, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  FEE REDUCTION/WAIVER POLICY  

File No. A09 FEE 
 
 
1.0 Purpose 
 
To establish a set of guidelines for providing financial assistance, in the form of a fee 
reduction or waiver for municipally owned or controlled facilities including the Optimist 
Recreation Centre, Puslinch Community Centre, and playing fields and surfaces to not-
for-profit organizations that maintain and improve the quality of life for residents of the 
Township of Puslinch (“Township”). 
 
2.0 Applicant Qualifications  
 
Organizations applying for funding must meet the following qualifications:   
 

• The organization must be operating as a not-for-profit organization. 
• The applicant must have a formal organizational structure (ie. a Board of 

Directors, Committee Structure, or a structure similar in nature) and hold regular 
meetings. 

• The agency or group is a Puslinch-based organization or an organization that 
benefits Township residents.  

• The organization must be able to demonstrate that the fee reduction/waiver 
assistance requested from the Township supplements funding the organization 
has received through other sources and its own fundraising efforts.  

• The applicant must be able to demonstrate that there is volunteer involvement in 
the community event. 

• The applicant must show that the service or event is needed and not in conflict 
with a similar service or event provided by another organization in the 
community.  

• The applicant must demonstrate financial need and should indicate the impact on 
the activity that will take place if the funding is not received. 

 
The following organizations are not eligible for funding: 
 

• Groups or organizations of a religious nature. 
• Groups or organizations affiliated with any political party or event. 



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 

Schedule D to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

2 
 

• Individuals, commercial organizations, and coalitions such as ratepayer 
associations.  

• Hospitals, hospital foundations and hospital auxiliary groups or agencies. 
• Educational institutions including universities, colleges, schools and associated 

auxiliary groups. 
• Organizations not in good financial standing with the Township or in litigation with 

the Township. 
• Organizations who did not meet the requirements or fulfill their obligations of a 

previous grant application or fee reduction/waiver application. 
• Organizations that have entered into an agreement for the use of a municipally 

owned or controlled facility at a nominal rate. 
 
3.0 Funding Criteria 
 
The following requests are not eligible for funding: 
 

• Fundraising activities and events 
• Requests for relief from licences, development charges, building permits, 

inspections, insurance. 
• Requests for relief from fees not controlled by the Township. 
• Township staff labour. 
• Political campaigns, parties or events. 

 
4.0 Criteria  
 
The following criteria will be used to evaluate fee reduction/waiver requests for events:   
 

• Demonstrates collaboration, positive community engagement and civic pride 
• Promotes volunteerism, participation and leadership development 
• Fosters a healthy, safe and active community  
• Fiscal and overall accountability 
• Responsiveness to existing community need 

 
5.0 Application Requirements  
 
The following items are required as part of the fee reduction/waiver application process: 
 

• All applications must be received a minimum of sixty days prior to the facility 
usage date(s) to the Finance Department in order to ensure timely processing. 

The Corporation of the Township of Puslinch 
7404 Wellington Road 34 
Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 
Attention: Fee Reduction/Waiver Program 



  Township of Puslinch 
  Corporate Policy 

Schedule D to Report FIN-2015-021 
   

3 
 

• Application forms received after this time will be processed, however, groups 
must assume responsibility for any consequences associated with delays in the 
confirmation/administration process. All applications are subject to facility 
service/availability. 

• The fee reduction/waiver application form must be completed in full with all 
requested information attached.  

• Verification of not-profit/charitable status (ie. incorporating documents, 
constitution, by-laws, etc.). This is a requirement for the initial application only. 

• Organization structure with Board of Directors’ or Executive Officers’ names and 
positions. 

• An operating budget for the organization’s operating year in which the fee 
reduction/waiver is being requested; if not available, most recent operating 
budget is required. 

• Previous years’ financial statements (reviewed or audited); if not available, most 
recent financial statements are required.  

• Organizations will be required to apply for funding on a per event basis or 
annually depending on the nature of the application. 
 

6.0 Conditions of Funding 
 

• The facility usage must comply with Township requirements for events and 
facility rentals including necessary insurance, permits, and approvals in place 
within the required timelines.   

• Adherence to all applicable municipal by-laws, policies and procedures is 
required. 
 

7.0 Maximum of Funds Available 
 

Funds available to an organization are limited to a maximum of $XXX per organization 
per calendar year which includes requests for grants. The granting of fee 
reductions/waivers in any year is not to be regarded as a commitment by the Township 
to continue such assistance in future years. 
 
8.0 Attachments 
 

• Fee Reduction/Waiver Application Form  
 





2 
 

Group 2013 In-
Kind 

2014 
Photocopying 

2014 
Advertising 

2014 In-
Kind 

2014 
Total 

Optimist Club $5,600 Photocopies  
Note A 

Santa Claus 
Parade –  
$94 

$15,645 $15,739 

Senior’s 
Community Event 
(Euchre) 

Nil Nil Nil $1,243 $1,243 

Mill Creek 
Subwatershed 
Community 
Liaison Team 

$660  
 

Nil Nil $848 $848 

Friends of Mill 
Creek 

$650  
 

Photocopies 
and mailings  
Note A 

Nil $1,260 $1,260 

COPS Nil  
 

Nil Nil $311 $311 

Morriston United 
Church – Mount 
Carmel-Zion 
United Church 

$1,460  
 

Nil Nil $1,650 $1,650 

Junior Garden 
Club 

Nil Nil Nil $497 $497 

Agriculture Society  
 

$2,800  
 

Nil Aberfoyle 
Fall Fair - 
$116 

$3,374 $3,490 

Aberfoyle Public 
School  
 

$780  
 

Nil Nil $1,927 $1,927 

Puslinch Minor 
Soccer Club  
 

$825  
 

Nil Nil $1,034 $1,034 

Whistle Stop 
Daycare  
 

$6,015  
 

Nil Nil $11,838 $11,838 

Guelph 
Community Health 
Centre 
(Playgroup)  
 

$2,035  
 

Nil Nil $4,520 $4,520 

Puslinch Historical 
Society – Library 
Rental 

$5,000 Nil Nil $5,000 $5,000 

Total $25,825 Note A $210 $49,145 $49,355 



3 
 

Note A - Amounts have not been quantified at this time. 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS  
 
Township User Fee By-law No. 076/14 
 
Municipal Act, 2001  
 
Directly from the Municipal Act, 2001 regarding Grants: 

Assistance prohibited 

Despite any Act, a municipality shall not assist directly or indirectly any manufacturing 
business or other industrial or commercial enterprise through the granting of bonuses 
for that purpose. 2001, c. 25, s. 106 (1). 

General power to make grants 

Despite any provision of this or any other Act relating to the giving of grants or aid by a 
municipality, subject to section 106, a municipality may make grants, on such terms as 
to security and otherwise as the council considers appropriate, to any person, group or 
body, including a fund, within or outside the boundaries of the municipality for any 
purpose that council considers to be in the interests of the municipality. 2001, c. 25, 
s. 107 (1) 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Schedule A – In-Kind Bookings - Service Community Groups and Clubs 
 
Schedule B – In-Kind Bookings - Daycares/Playgroups 
 



1 | P a g e  
 

Schedule “A” 

Service Community Groups and Clubs 

User Group Event Facility Used  Details Revenues  

Optimist Club  Euchre 
 

Community Centre - 
Archie MacRobbie  

Jan – May, Oct, Nov, 2014  
1st Friday of Jan – May & 
2nd Tues of Oct & Nov 
 
Jan – May (3 hrs/booking) 
Oct & Nov (4 hrs/booking) 
 
7 bookings total 
Friday bookings: $479.00 + 
HST x 5 = $2,706 
 
Tuesday bookings: $215.00 
+ HST x 2 = $485.90 
 
Total: 3191.90 

$3,191.90 
 

Regular 
Meetings 

Community Centre - 
Alf Hales 

Jan – Feb, March 4 & 11, 
April – May, Sept 2 & 9   
 
1st or 2nd Tuesday  
1.5 hours/bookings 
 
8 bookings total 
1.5 x $25.00 + HST = 
$42.38 
8 x $42.38 = 339.04 
 
Total: $339.04 

$339.04 
 
 

Dinner 
Meetings 

Community Centre - 
Archie MacRobbie 

Jan – June, Sept – Dec, 
2014 
 
Tuesday Evenings 
4 hrs/booking 
 
10 bookings total 
 
$215.00 + HST  
= $242.95 
 
$242.95 x 10 = 2,429.50 
 
Total: $2,429.50 

$2,429.50 



2 | P a g e  
 

Winter 
Classic 
Tournament 

Optimist Recreation 
Centre – Rink Pad 

Feb 15 -17, 2014 
Feb 15 (9:00 a.m. – 10:00 
p.m. 
Feb 16 -17 (9:00 a.m. – 
7:00 p.m.) 
Feb 15 – 16: $155.00 
+HST = $175.15 
$175.15 x 23 hrs = 
$2,101.80 
Feb 17: 8 hrs @ $78.00 + 
HST + 2 hrs @ $155.00 + 
HST = $1055.42 
 
Total: $3,157.22 

$3,157.22 

Santa Clause 
Parade 

Optimist Recreation 
Centre – Rink Pad 
 
Community Centre – 
Kitchen 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign Rental 
 
 
 

Nov. 23, 2014 
Rink: 8:00 a.m. – 4:30 p.m.  
8.5 hrs 
$65.00 + HST = $73.45 
$73.45 x 8.5 = $625.32 
 
Kitchen:  
5.5 hrs 
First 4 hours = $105.00 + 
HST = $118.65 
Additional hours =  
$25.00/hr x 1.5 hrs + HST = 
$42.58 
 
Parade advertisement: 
(Nov. 13 – 24, 2014) 
1 week 
4 lines 
= $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
Thank-you sign: 
(Dec. 8 – 14, 2014) 
1 week 
4 lines 
1 week 
4 lines 
= $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
Total: 929.63 

$929.63 



3 | P a g e  
 

Breakfast 
with Santa 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie & 
Alf Hales 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Sign Rental 

Nov 22, 2014 
 
Large hall: 
6 hrs (7:00 a.m. – 1:00 
p.m.) 
Archie MacRobbie (rented 
on a 4 hours basis on Sun. 
6 hours of use would be 
charged for 8 hours of use) 
 
4 hrs = $215.00 + HST 
= $242.95 
 
8 hrs =  $242.95 x 2  
= $485.90 
 
Small hall: 
6 hrs (7:00 a.m. – 1:00 
p.m.) 
 
1 hr = $25.00 + HST 
= $28.25 
 
6 hrs = $28.25 x 6  
= $169.50 
 
 
Breakfast Advertisement: 
(Nov. 15 – 23, 2014) 
1 week 
5 lines 
= $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
Total: $726.59 

$726.59 

Fish Fry Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie & 
Alf Hales 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign 

May 7, 2014 
Thursday all day event 
 
Large hall (all day): 
$365.00 + HST 
= $412.45 
 
Small hall  
18 hrs (8:00 a.m. – 2:00 
a.m.)  
1 hr = $25.00 + HST 
= $28.25 
 
18 hrs = $28.25 x 6 
= $508.50 
 
Fish Fry Advertisement: 
May 1 – 8, 2014 
1 week 
5 lines 
= $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
Total: $992.14 

$992.14 



4 | P a g e  
 

Spring 
Classic Steak 
Night 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie & 
Alf Hales 

March 28, 2014 
Friday all day event 
 
Large hall (all day): 
$479.00 + HST 
= $541.27 
 
Small hall: 
18 hrs (8:00 a.m. – 2:00 
a.m.)  
1 hr = $25.00 + HST 
= $28.25 
 
18 hrs = $28.25 x 6 
= $508.50 
 
Total: $1,049.77 

$1,049.77 

Canada Day 
Pancake 
Breakfast 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign 

July 1, 2014 
Sunday 
 
Large room 
5 hrs: 7:00 a.m. – 12:00 
p.m. 
 
Archie MacRobbie (rented 
on a 4 hours basis on Sun. 
6 hours of use would be 
charged for 8 hours of use) 
 
4 hrs = $215.00 + HST 
= $242.95 
 
8 hrs =  $242.95 x 2  
= $485.90 
 
Pancake Breakfast 
Advertisement: 
June 17 – July 1, 2014 
2 weeks 
5 lines 
 
1 week = $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
2 weeks = $71.19 x 2 
= $142.38 
 
Firework Sale 
Advertisement: 
June 24 – July 1, 2014 
 
1 week  
5 lines 
 
1 week = $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
Total: $699.47 

$699.47 



5 | P a g e  
 

Spring 
Classic Steak 
Night 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie & 
Alf Hales 

Oct. 24, 2014 
Friday all day event 
 
Large hall (all day): 
$479.00 + HST 
= $541.27 
 
Small hall  
18 hrs (8:00 a.m. – 2:00 
a.m.)  
1 hr = $25.00 + HST 
= $28.25 
 
18 hrs = $28.25 x 6 
= $508.50 
 
Total: $1,049.77 

$1,049.77 

Cribbage 
Tournament 

Community Centre –  
Archie MacRobbie & 
Alf Hales 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sign Rental 

Jan. 25, 2014 
Saturday all day event 
 
Large hall (all day): 
$479.00 + HST 
= $541.27 
 
Small hall  
14 hrs (8:00 a.m. – 10:00 
p.m.)  
1 hr = $25.00 + HST 
= $28.25 
 
14 hrs = $28.25 x 6 
= 395.50 
 
Cribbage Advertisement: 
(Jan. 10 – 25, 2014) 
2 weeks 
6 lines 
 
1 week = $63.00 + HST 
= $71.19 
 
2 weeks = $71.19 x 2 
= $142.38 
 
Total: $1,079.50 

$1,079.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
Usage Total: 
$15,644.53 
 

Senior’s  
Community 
Event  

Euchre Community Centre 
Alf Hales 
 

Jan. 14 & 27, Feb. 11 & 25, 
Mar. 11 & 25, Apr. 8 & 22, 
Oct – Dec 
Small room 
12:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 
11 bookings 
 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 4 hrs 
= $113.00 
 
$113.00 x 11 
= $1,243.00 

$1,243 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$1,243 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

Mill Creek Meeting Community Centre 
Alf Hales 
 

Jan – Sept & Nov 
Small room 
1:00 p.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 
10 bookings 
 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 3 hrs/meeting 
= $84.75 
 
$84.75 x 10 
= $847.50 
 

$847.50 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$847.50 

 

Friends of Mill 
Creek  

Meetings  Community Centre 
Alf Hales Room 

Jan – Dec, 2014 
Monthly Meetings 
3:30 p.m. – 5:00 p.m.  
18 hrs 
 
Small room: 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 18 
= $508.50 

$508.50 

BBQ Archie MacRobbie Aug. 21, 2014 
Thursday 
4:00 p.m. – 7:00 p.m. 
 
Large hall: 
4 hrs = $215.00 + HST 
= $242.95 
 
Total: 751.45 
 

$751.45 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$1,259.95 

 

COPS Meeting  Community Centre 
Alf Hales Room 

Jan – Dec, 2014 
Monthly Meetings 
7:00 p.m. – 8:30 p.m. 
11 hours 
 
Small room: 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 11  
= $310.75 
 
Total: $310.75 

$310.75 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$310.75 

 



7 | P a g e  
 

Morriston 
United 
Church 

Senior 
Luncheon 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie 

Wednesday, April ,June, 
Oct, Dec, 2014 
8:30 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
* Charging full day rate, as 
it is less expensive than 
two 4 hour rental rates* 
 
Large room:  
$365.00 + HST 
= $412.45 
 
$412.45 x 4 
= $1,649.80 
 
Total:  1,649.80 

$1,649.80 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$1,649.80 

Junior 
Garden Club 

Registration Foyer/ Alf Hales April 2, 2014 
6:00 p.m. - 9:00 pm  
3 hrs 
 
Small room: 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 3  
= $84.75 
 
Total: $84.75 

$84.78 

Banquet Archie MacRobbie Sept. 9, 2014 
8:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
Large room 
 
$365.00 + HST 
= $412.45 
 
Total: $412.45 

$412.45 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$497.23 



8 | P a g e  
 

Agriculture 
Society 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chicken BBQ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Meetings 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Fall Fair 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie  
Alf Hales 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Centre 
Alf Hales  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Community Centre 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Soccer pitches 
Green shed storage 
Horse paddock  

June 5, 2014 
Large hall (all day) & small 
hall (7:30 a.m. – 10:00 
p.m.) 
 
Large room: 
$365.00 + HST 
= $412.45 
 
Small room:  
14.5 hrs 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 14.5 hrs 
= $409.62 
 
Total = $822.07 
Jan, May, June, Aug, Oct -- 
Nov 
Small room 
7:00 p.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
 
Small room:  
18 hrs 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 18 hrs 
= $508.50 
 
Total = 508.50 

Sept 5 & 6, 2014 

Sept 5: Large & small room  
Sept 6: Large & small room  
 
Large room: 
$479.00 + HST 
= $541.27 
 
$541.27 x 2 days 
= $1,082.54 
 
Small room: 
7:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
18 hrs 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 18 hrs 
 
=$508.50 
 
N/A 
N/A 
Sept. 5 & 6, 2014 
$200.00 + HST per day 
= $226.00 
$226.00 x 2  
= $452.00 
 
Total: $2,043.04 

$822.07 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
$508.50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
$2,043.04 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$3,373.61 

 



9 | P a g e  
 

Aberfoyle 
Public School 

Graduation Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie 
Alf Hales 

June 26, 2014 
Large & small room 
 
Large room (all day) 
$365 + HST 
= $412.45 
 
Small room (6:00 p.m. – 
10:00 p.m.) - 4 hours 
 
$25.00/hr + HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 4 hrs 
= $113.00 
 
Total: $525.45 

$525.45 

Cross 
Country 
Event 

Community Centre 
Grounds 

N/A – No charge N/A 

Kids Skate Optimist Recreation 
Centre – Rink  

Jan – March, 2014 
Based on invoices issued 
and paid  
 
Total: $745.80 

$745.80 
 
 

 Chess 
Tournament 

Archie MacRobbie April 9 & 10, 2014 
Large room 
 
April 9, 2014 (Set-up): 
1:30 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. – 2 
hrs 
 
*Archie MacRobbie (rented 
on a 4 hours basis on Wed. 
2 hours of use would be 
charged for 4 hours)* 
 
$215.00 + HST 
= $242.95 
 
April 10, 2014: 
All day 
 
$365.00 + HST 
= $412.45 
 
Total: $655.40 

$655.40 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$1,926.65 



10 | P a g e  
 

Puslinch 
Minor Soccer 
Club 

Meetings Alf Hales Monthly  
 
January 16, 2014 – Annual 
general meeting 
Large room (Thursday) 
4 hours/booking = $215.00 
+ HST 
= $242.95 
 
Jan – March, May, Aug - 
Sept, Nov. 6 & 27 
Small room (7:00 p.m. – 
10:00 p.m.) 
8 bookings 
3 hrs/booking = 75.00 + 
HST  
= $84.75 
 
84.75 x 8 
= $678.00  
 
Total: $920.95 
 

$977.45 

 Registration Alf Hales Jan. 23, 2014 
Small room 
6:30 p.m. – 8:30 p.m. 
1 hr = $25.00 x HST 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 2  
= $56.50 
 
Total: $56.50 

$56.50 

 BBQ Grounds N/A – No charge  N/A 
Usage Total: 

$1,033.95 
 

Total:    27,786.97  
 

  



11 | P a g e  
 

Schedule “B” 

Daycare /Playgroup  

Daycare/Playgroup  Details  
Whistle Stop Daycare Community Centre 

Foye/Alf Hales 
Daycare 

Daycare 
Monday, Wednesday, 
Friday  
8:30 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. – 
3.5 hrs/booking 
 
Jan (beginning Jan 6), Feb 
(except Feb. 17), March 
(except Mar. 10, 12, 14), 
April (except April 18 & 21), 
May (except May 19), June 
(until week of June 23), 
Sept. (beginning Sept. 8), 
Oct (except Oct. 13), Nov, 
Dec (except Dec. 3, ending 
Dec. 12) 
 
Small room 
 
$25.00 + HST per hour 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 + 3.5 hrs/booking 
= $98.87 
 
Total of 95 bookings at 
$98.87/booking 
 
$98.87 x 95  
= $9,392.65 
 
Total: $9,382.65 

$9,382.65 

Community Centre 
Alf Hales 
Toy Clean 

Jan. 8, 2014 
7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
 
April 16, 2014 
6:30 p.m. – 9:30 p.m. 
 
June 18, 2014 
6:30 p.m. – 9:30 p.m. 
 
Dec. 17, 2014 
7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
 
Small Room 
$25.00 + HST per hour  
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 10 hrs 
= $197.75 
 
Total: $282.50 

$282.50 

Community Centre 
Archie MacRobbie 
Christmas Party 
 

Dec. 15, 2014 
Large room (all day) 
 
$365.00 + HST 
= $412.45 

$412.45 



12 | P a g e  
 

 
Total: $412.45 

Community Centre 
Alf Hales 
Pre-School Meeting 

Nov. 17, 2014 
7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
 
Small Room 
$25.00 + HST per hour  
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 2 hrs 
= $56.50 
 
Total: $56.50 

$56.50 

 Community Centre 
Alf Hales 
Parent Meeting 

Sept. 15, 2014 
7:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
 
Small Room 
$25.00 + HST per hour  
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 2 hrs 
= $56.50 
 
Total: $56.50 

$56.50 

Community Centre 
Alf Hales 
Teacher Interviews 

Aug. 8, 2014 
9:00 a.m. – 10:30 a.m. & 
6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m. 
 
3.5 hours  
 
Small Room 
$25.00 + HST per hour  
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 3.5 
= $98.87 
 
Total: 98.87 

$98.87 

Graduation June 20, 2014 
9:00 a.m. – 1:00 p.m. 
Large room 
 
$479.00 + HST 
= $541.27 
 
Total: $541.27 

$541.27 

Workshop June  2, 2014 
6:30 p.m. – 9:00 p.m. 
Small room  
 
$25.00 + HST per hour  
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 2.5 hrs 
= $70.62 
 
Total: $70.62 

$70.62 

Valentine’s Day 
Dance 

February 23, 2014 
Large & small room 
 
Large room (all day): 
$479 + HST  
= 541.27 

$936.77 
 
 
 
 



13 | P a g e  
 

Small room (all day) 
8:00 a.m. – 10:00 p.m. 
 
$25.00 + HST per hour  
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 x 14 hrs 
= $395.50 
 
Total: $936.77 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$11,838.13 

Guelph Community Health 
Centre (Playgroup) 

Community Centre 
Foye/Alf Hales 
room 
Playgroup 

Tuesdays  
8:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. - 
4 hrs/booking 
 
(Jan, Feb, March, April, 
May, June, Sept (beginning 
Sept. 9), Oct, Nov, Dec 
(with the exception of Dec. 
30) 
 
Small room 
 
$25.00 + HST per hour 
= $28.25 
 
$28.25 + 4 hrs/booking 
= $113.00 
 
Total of 40 bookings at 
$113.00/booking 
= $4,520 
 
Total: $4,520 

$4,520 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Usage Total: 
$4,520 

Total:    $16,358.13 
Total for all:   44,145.10 
 

 

 





 
Township of Puslinch 

7404 Wellington Road #34 
Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 

T: (519) 763 – 1226 
F: (519) 763 – 5846 

www.puslinch.ca 

1 
 

Schedule G - Grant Application Form 

Applicant Information: 

Organization Name:   

Contact Name and Position:    

Current Mailing Address:   

Town/City/Province:   

Postal Code:    

Email Address:   

Website:    

Telephone Number:    

Fax Number:   

Questionnaire:  
Grant amount applied for:            

Organization’s Mandate: 

a) Purpose/Mission:                

    

    

    

b) Goals and Objectives:                



 
 
 

2 
 

   

    

    

Briefly describe the proposed event, project or service that will be funded by this 
grant. Please ensure that items identified as Ineligible for Funding under Section 
3.0 of the Grant Application Policy are not listed.  

    

    

    

    

Have funds been requested from other levels of government or organizations? If 
yes, please indicate which organizations, or to which level of government, and 
the current status of the request.  

    

    

    

    

Please provide a narrative description explaining how the Township’s approval of 
grant funding would enable your organization to sustain or provide additional 
support to the community.  

   

    

    

    

    



 
 
 

3 
 

Is there a local organization that provides similar services to those provided by 
your organization? If yes, how are your services different from this other 
organization?  

   

    

    

    

Do volunteers participate in your organization? If yes, please indicate the number 
of volunteers and type of involvement.  

   

    

    

    

The proposed event, project or service will involve the following demographics 
(check all that apply): 

 Children  Youth   Seniors  Volunteers 

 Persons with Disabilities  Low income individuals 

 Other (describe)        

Describe how the community has supported your organization in previous years 
(check all that apply):  

 Participation   Attendance   Sponsorship   

 Other (describe)         

Please describe the nature of the support. 

   

    

    



 
 
 

4 
 

What steps is your organization taking to reduce dependence on grants such as 
the Township Grant Application Program or the Fee Reduction/Waiver Program?  

   

    

    

    

If your organization is unsuccessful in receiving a Township grant, what will be 
the effect on the proposed event, service, or project?  

   

    

    

    

Please provide a list of board of directors and/or executive officers:  

Name:   Position:  

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       



 
 
 

5 
 

Description of Categories of Funding 

Category 1: Sustaining/Continuing Support     
Grants for organizations that are community-based and fairly represent both their own 
interest and those of the community in which they serve. There is no guarantee on 
future funding regardless of past funding received. Services, programs and activities 
must demonstrate a benefit to the majority of residents. The following costs are eligible 
for funding: marketing or advertising costs including fees associated with ball diamond, 
rink board and sign rental advertising; photocopy costs; and mailing costs including 
postage and envelopes. 

Category 2: Project-Based/One Time/Start-Up Support   
Grants are to be given as “seed” money. Funds are allocated to provide start-up funding 
for a new not-for-profit organization, or a new program within an already existing not-for-
profit organization, for an activity deemed to be of significant value to the community at 
large.  

Category 3: Community Event Support    
Grants are to be given to organizations for the purpose of a community event that 
benefits the majority of residents. Examples include the Santa Claus Parade, Fall Fair, 
and the Canada Day Pancake Breakfast and Fireworks.  

Please Check Appropriate Boxes:  
Category 1: Sustaining/Continuing (choose one category only) 

Category 2: Project-Based/One Time/Start-Up (choose one category only) 

Category 3: Community Event (choose one category only) 

Most recent financial statements (mandatory) 

Current year budget for the proposed event, service, or project (mandatory) 

Verification of non-profit/charitable status attached (ie. incorporating documents, 
constitution, by-laws, etc.). This is a requirement for the initial application only 
(mandatory). 

Time slot request for a short presentation to Council (not mandatory) 

If your organization was a successful applicant in a previous year, the final 
reporting requirements have been submitted in accordance with Section 7 of the 
Township of Puslinch Grant Application Policy. (mandatory) 

The applicant has reviewed the Grant Application Policy, the Terms and 
Conditions, and has signed the application. (mandatory) 



 
 
 

6 
 

Terms and Conditions:  

• The above application and supporting documents attached will be used for the 
assessment of eligibility and for Township reporting purposes. 

• The applicant will inform Council if the project is delayed or changed substantially 
for any reason. 

• Funds received are to be used as described in this application. 
• All applicable municipal by-laws, policies and procedures will be adhered to. 

I agree to the terms and conditions outlined above. The information given in support of 
this application is true, correct and complete in every respect. I acknowledge that the 
contents of this application will be discussed in an open Council forum. 

______________________________ ________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant  Date of Application 

______________________________  
Position on Executive   

 
The last day for filing an application is by 2:00 pm on the last business day of 
September. 

For Office use only: 
Date received:             

Received by:   

Grant Status:   

Amount $:   

______________________________ ________________________________ 
Manager Approval  Date of Approval 

Personal information on this form is collected under the authority of the Municipal Act and will be 
used for the purpose of determining the eligibility of a grant. The information is used for the 
purpose of processing this application and administering the Grant Application Program and is 
maintained in accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy 
Act. Questions regarding the collection of this information may be directed to the Township 
Clerk’s office.  

The Township of Puslinch is committed to providing accessible formats and communication 
supports for people with a disability. If another format would work better for you, please contact 
the Township Clerk’s office for assistance. 



 
Township of Puslinch 

7404 Wellington Road #34 
Guelph, ON, N1H 6H9 

T: (519) 763 – 1226 
F: (519) 763 – 5846 

www.puslinch.ca 
 

1 
 

Schedule H - Fee Reduction/Waiver Application Form 

Applicant Information: 

Organization Name:   

Contact Name and Position:    

Current Mailing Address:   

Town/City/Province:   

Postal Code:    

Email Address:   

Website:    

Telephone Number:    

Fax Number:   

Questionnaire:  
Facility Requested:          

Date(s)/Time(s):          

Number of People:          

Admission/Participation Fee:          

Reduction/Waiver Amount:          

 



 
 
 

2 
 

Will the event include: (check all that apply) 

 Food   Alcohol   Music 

Organization’s Mandate: 

a) Purpose/Mission:                

    

    

    

b) Goals and Objectives:                

   

    

    

Briefly describe the proposed event and/or service that will be funded by this fee 
reduction/waiver request. Please ensure that items identified as Ineligible for 
Funding under Section 3 of the Fee Reduction/Waiver Policy are not listed.  

    

    

    

    

Have funds been requested from other levels of government or organizations? If 
yes, please indicate which organizations, or to which level of government, and 
the current status of the request.  

    

    

    

    



 
 
 

3 
 

Please provide a narrative description explaining how the Township’s approval of 
this fee reduction/waiver would enable your organization to sustain or provide 
additional support to the community.  

   

    

    

    

    

Is there a local organization that provides a similar event/service to the 
community? If yes, how is your event/service different from this other 
organization?  

   

    

    

    

Do volunteers participate in your event/service? If yes, please indicate the 
number of volunteers and type of involvement.  

   

    

    

    

The proposed event/service will involve the following demographics (check all 
that apply): 

 Children  Youth   Seniors  Volunteers 

 Persons with Disabilities  Low income individuals 

 Other (describe)        



 
 
 

4 
 

Describe how the community has supported your event/service in previous years 
(check all that apply):  

 Participation   Attendance   Sponsorship   

 Other (describe)         

Please describe the nature of the support. 

   

    

    

What steps is your organization taking to reduce dependence on grants such as 
the Township Grant Application Program or the Fee Reduction/Waiver Program?  

   

    

    

    

If your organization is unsuccessful in receiving a fee reduction/waiver approval, 
what will be the effect on the proposed event/service? 

   

    

    

    

Please provide a list of board of directors and/or executive officers:  

Name:   Position:  

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       



 
 
 

5 
 

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Name:  Position:       

Please Check Appropriate Boxes:  

Most recent financial statements (mandatory) 

Current year budget for the proposed event (mandatory) 

Verification of non-profit/charitable status attached (ie. incorporating documents, 
constitution, by-laws, etc.). This is a requirement for the initial application only 
(mandatory). 

If your organization was a successful applicant in a previous year, the final 
reporting requirements have been submitted in accordance with Section 7 of the 
Township of Puslinch Grant Application Policy. (mandatory) 

The applicant has reviewed the Fee Reduction Waiver Policy, the Terms and 
Conditions, and has signed the application. (mandatory) 

Terms and Conditions:  

• The above application and supporting documents attached will be used for the 
assessment of eligibility and for Township reporting purposes. 

• Organizations will be required to apply for funding on a per event basis or 
annually depending on the nature of the application. 

• The facility usage must comply with Township requirements for events and 
facility rentals including necessary insurance, permits, and approvals in place 
within the required timelines.   

• All applicable municipal by-laws, policies and procedures will be adhered to. 
 
 
 



 
 
 

6 
 

I agree to the terms and conditions outlined above. The information given in support of 
this application is true, correct and complete in every respect. I acknowledge that the 
contents of this application will be discussed in an open Council forum. 

______________________________ ________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant  Date of Application 

______________________________  
Position on Executive   

 
The last day for filing an application is sixty days prior to the facility usage 
date(s). Application forms received after this time will be processed, however, 
groups must assume responsibility for any consequences associated with delays 
in the confirmation/administration process. All applications are subject to facility 
service/availability. 

For Office use only: 
Date received:             

Received by:   

Fee Reduction/Waiver Status:   

Amount of Fees Waived/Reduced $:  

______________________________ ________________________________ 
Manager Approval  Date of Approval 

Personal information on this form is collected under the authority of the Municipal Act and will be 
used for the purpose of determining the eligibility of a fee reduction/waiver. The information is 
used for the purpose of processing this application and administering the Fee Reduction/Waiver 
Program and is maintained in accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and 
Protection of Privacy Act. Questions regarding the collection of this information may be directed 
to the Township Clerk’s office.  

 
The Township of Puslinch is committed to providing accessible formats and communication 
supports for people with a disability. If another format would work better for you, please contact 
the Township Clerk’s office for assistance. 

































































REPORT ADM-2015-005 

 

TO:   Mayor and Members of Council 

FROM:  Karen M. Landry, CAO/Clerk 

MEETING DATE: May 6, 2015 

SUBJECT:  Director of Finance/Treasurer – Contract Position  
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 

That Report ADM-2015-005 regarding the Director of Finance/Treasurer – Contract 
Position be received; and  
 
That Council authorize the use of any surplus capital funds realized during 2015 to fund 
an extended Contract from 1 year to 1 ½ years to temporarily replace the Director of 
Finance/Treasurer; and 
 
That staff report to Council upon the realization of any surplus capital funds once the 
results of the various tenders are known. 
 
DISCUSSION 

Background 

The Director of Finance/Treasurer for the Township will be taking maternity leave in 
October 2015. 

Purpose 

The purpose of this report is to obtain authorization from Council to direct any surplus 
funds realized from any 2015 capital projects to fund an extension of the contract to 
cover the maternity leave of the Director of Finance/Treasurer from one year to one and 
a half years.  Staff recommends that a replacement for the Director of 
Finance/Treasurer be retained as soon as possible to provide sufficient time to facilitate 
training, awareness of job related requirements, projects, expectations, legislative 
reporting requirements and introduction to the Township’s budget process. 

Staff will report to Council within the next month on the results of recently issued 
tenders by the Director of Public Works and Parks.   

 



REPORT NO. ADM-2015-005 
Page 2 of 2 

 
Obtaining preliminary authorization regarding funding at this time will facilitate the 
posting of the contract position immediately.  Staff will not proceed with filling the 
contract position until such time as a report has been considered by Council approving 
the additional funding needs. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 

Additional funds are required for extending the contract from a period of one year to one 
and a half years. 
 

APPLICABLE LEGISLATION AND REQUIREMENTS 

Not applicable 













 Puslinch Recreation Committee 
Tuesday, March 17, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 

1 
 

MINUTES 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
 
Councillor Stokley, Chair  
Tom Jefferson, Vice-Chair 
Daina Makinson 
June Williams 
 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT  
 
Nichole Caswell 
 
TOWNSHIP STAFF  
  
Donna Tremblay, Deputy Clerk 
Marissa Herner, Communications Associate/C.S.R 
 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

 
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. 

 
2. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 

 
None.  
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
a) February 17, 2015 – Regular Meeting 

 
Moved by Tom Jefferson and then Seconded by June Williams REC-2015-04 
 
That the Minutes of the Recreation Committee meeting dated February 17, 2015 
be adopted. 
 

CARRIED 
 

4. DELEGATIONS/PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 

5. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 

1.  Recreation & Parks Master Plan – discussion – draft recommendations 
Recreation Master Plan Presentation by Steve Langlois at February 17, 2015 
Recreation Meeting 

 
The Recreation Committee reviewed the recommendations made in the Draft 
Recreation and Parks master plan and provided the following comments:   
 
The Committee requested additional information regarding working with community 
partners such as YMCA-YWCA Guelph to regularly evaluate program opportunities. 
 
The Committee requested additional information regarding future programming and 
partnerships regarding seniors and organizations such as Evergreen Seniors Centre  



 Puslinch Recreation Committee 
Tuesday, March 17, 2015 

7:00 p.m. 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

 
 

2 
 

2. Trophy Photographs – update on trophy photographs at the Puslinch 
Community Centre 

Ms. Daina Makinson provided the Committee with an update regarding the 
completion of the trophy book. Ms. Makinson advised that there are some trophies 
where photographs need to be taken.  Once this is completed, the trophy 
photographs will be organized and catalogued into a book.  

 
6. FINANCIAL REPORTS 

 
1. Revenue and Expenses 

 
a) January 2015 (Parkland) 
b) January 2015 (Optimist Recreation Centre) 
c) January 2015 (Puslinch Community Centre) 

 
The Committee reviewed the January 2015 revenue and expenses for the Parkland, 
Optimist Recreation Centre, and Puslinch Community Centre departments. 
 
Moved by Mr. Jefferson and then Seconded by Ms. Williams REC-2015-05 
 
That the Recreation Committee receive the following: 
 

a) January 2015 (Parkland) 
b) January 2015 (Optimist Recreation Centre) 
c) January 2015 (Puslinch Community Centre) 

 
CARRIED 
 
 

2. Revenue Summaries 
 
a) Yearly Revenue Comparison – Community Centre/Optimist Recreation Centre 

 
Moved by Ms. Williams and then Seconded by Ms. Makinson REC-2015-06 
 
That the Recreation Committee receive the Yearly Revenue Comparison – 
Puslinch Community Centre/Optimist Recreation Centre. 
 
CARRIED 
 

7. CLOSED MEETING 
 
None.  
 

8. ADJOURNMENT  

Moved by Ms. Makinson and then Seconded by Ms. Williams REC-2015-07 

The Recreation Committee Meeting hereby adjourns at 7:40 p.m.  

CARRIED 
 

9. NEXT MEETING 
 
Tuesday, April 21, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 



 Committee of Adjustment Meeting 
February 10, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

MINUTES 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Dianne Paron 
Councilor Ken Roth 
Robin Wayne 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dennis O’Connor 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Karen Landry – CAO/Township Clerk 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Aldo Salis – County of Wellington 
Chad Hayden 

1.  OPENING REMARKS 
• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. Karen Landry welcomed committee 

members and held vote for Chair & Vice Chair  

2. APPOINTMENT of CHAIR & VICE-CHAIR; term February 2015 – February 2017 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dianne Paron 
• John Sepulis elected Chair 

CARRIED 
• Moved by John Sepulis, Seconded by Ken Roth 
• Dianne Paron elected Vice-Chair 

CARRIED 

3. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY-TREASURER 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by John Sepulis 
• Kelly Patzer appointed Secretary Treasurer and Donna Tremblay and Karen Landry 

appointed as alternates in the event of absence. 
CARRIED 

4. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• Moved by Dianne Paron, Seconded by Robin Wayne 
• That the minutes of the Tuesday November 10, 2014 Committee of Adjustment 

Meeting are hereby adopted as presented. 
CARRIED 

6. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT – Applications for Minor Variance 
6(a) File D13/HAY – Chad Hayden – Part Lot 24, Concession 9, 0 Victoria Street S, 

Township of Puslinch 
The purpose of the application is to seek relief from provisions of Zoning By-law 
#19/85: 



 2 

General Provisions, Accessory Uses, Section 3.1(a) - To permit two (2) existing 
accessory buildings to remain on the subject property without a dwelling for an 
additional 6 months. 

• Chad Hayden requested a 6 month extension for the use of the existing 
accessory buildings on the severed lot. 

• Councillor Roth questioned why the 6 month extension is required 

• C. Hayden stated there had been unforeseen circumstances that caused a 
delay in finalizing the construction of his new building and needed the extra 
time to move the contents from the existing accessory buildings to his new 
building. 

Moved by Robin Wayne, seconded by Dianne Paron  
That the application by Chad Hayden, file D13/HAY: 
To permit two (2) existing sheds to remain on the property without a dwelling until 
the date of July 9th, 2015 whereas Section 3.1(a), General Provisions, Accessory 
Uses, of the by-law requires a main building or structure to permit an accessory 
building, structure or use; 
Be approved with the following condition: 
1. The two sheds shall be demolished by the date of July 9, 2015 in the event that an 
occupancy permit for a new single detached dwelling is not obtained on, or before, 
July 9, 2015. 

CARRIED 

7. CLOSED MEETING 
• No matters 

8. FUTURE MEETINGS  
• March 10, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

9. AJOURNMENT 
• The Committee of Adjustment meeting adjourned at 7:20 p.m. 



Planning & Development Advisory Committee Meeting 
February 10, 2015 

7:00 pm 
Council Chambers, Aberfoyle 

MINUTES 

MEMBERS PRESENT: 
John Sepulis, Chair 
Dianne Paron 
Councilor Ken Roth 
Robin Wayne 

MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Dennis O’Conner 

OTHERS IN ATTENDANCE:  
Kelly Patzer – Development Coordinator 
Karen Landry – CAO/Township Clerk 
Sarah Wilhelm – County of Wellington 
Aldo Salis – County of Wellington 
Chad Hayden 

1.  OPENING REMARKS 
• The meeting was called to order at 7:00 pm. Karen Landry welcomed committee 

members and held vote for Chair & Vice Chair  

2. APPOINTMENT of CHAIR & VICE-CHAIR; term February 2015 – February 2017 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dianne Paron 
• John Sepulis elected Chair 

CARRIED 
• Moved by John Sepulis, Seconded by Ken Roth 
• Dianne Paron elected Vice-Chair 

CARRIED 

3. APPOINTMENT OF SECRETARY-TREASURER 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by John Sepulis 
• Kelly Patzer appointed Secretary Treasurer and Donna Tremblay and Karen Landry 

appointed as alternates in the event of absence. 
CARRIED 

4. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST 
• None 

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dianne Paron 
• That the minutes of the Monday November 24, 2014 Planning Advisory Committee 

Meeting are hereby adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

6. COMMITTEE OF ADJUSTMENT 
See February 10, 2015 Committee of Adjustment Minutes 

DEVELOPMENT APPLICATIONS 

7. PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – November 24, 2014 See #5 



 2 

8. ZONING BY-LAW AMENDMENTS 

8(a) D14/J2K – 227 Brock Road Zoning Amendment from Agricultural to Commercial to 
permit a proposed car wash and retail strip mall use. 
• No comments 

9. LAND DIVISION  
9(a) Severance (Easement) Application D10/SAL – John&Hanan Saliba (County file 

B1/15) Property described as Part Lot 11, Concession Gore, municipally known as 
6774 Gore Road 

• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Robin Wayne. 
• Correction of wording in application “site” to “sight” as it has an effect on the 

context of the 500 m “sight-line” requirement 
CARRIED 

9(b) Severance Application D10/SAL – John&Hanan Saliba (County file B2/15) Property 
described as Part Lot 11, Concession Gore, municipally known as 6774 Gore Road 

• Moved by Dianne Paron, Seconded by Robin Wayne 
• No comments (see easement application) 

CARRIED 

9(c) Severance Application D10/LOR – Edward&Heather Lorenowicz (County file B6/15) 
Property described as Part Lot 10, Concession 3, municipally known as 6746 
Wellington Road 34 

• Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Ken Roth 
• Concern with the excavated material on site and the proximity of the fill to the 

green space, as the application states no fill has been brought in 
• Google Maps shows evidence of commercial activity 

CARRIED 

9(d) Severance Application D10/WIL – Leonard Williams (County file B7/15) Property 
described as Part Lot 22, Concession 11, municipally known as 4439 Concession 11 

• Moved by Ken Roth, Seconded by Dianne Paron 
• No comments 

CARRIED 

9(e) Severance Application D10/COX - (County File B14/15) Property described as Part 
Lot 19, Concession 9, municipally known as 4501 Victoria Road S 

• Moved by Robin Wayne, Seconded by Ken Roth 
• A minor variance will be required for the proposed 6 metre frontage 
• Note that the retained parcel identifies easements that are not shown on the 

plan 
• Entrance permit required for the proposed lot 

CARRIED 

10. COMMITTEE ORIENTATION 

• Karen Landry presented Township Policies – Committee shall acknowledge all forms 
and complete mandatory training  

• Sarah Wilhelm completed a presentation on Planning Act requirements and 
development applications.  



 3 

11. CLOSED MEETING 
• No matters 

12. FUTURE MEETINGS  
• March 10, 2015, 7:00 p.m. 

13. AJOURNMENT 
• Moved by Ken Roth and Seconded by Robin Wayne. 
• The meeting adjourned at 9:08 p.m. 

CARRIED 


	C03 May 6, 2015 - Council Agenda
	2015 04 15- Regular Council Meeting Minutes
	Communications
	Notice - Morriston Streetscaping Plan Open House
	Item 6.1(a)
	Item 6.2(a)
	Item 6.2(a)(i)
	Item 6.2(a)(ii)
	Item 6.2(a)(iii)
	Item 6.2(a)(iv)
	Item 6.2(a)(v)

	Item 6.2(b)
	Item 6.2(b)(i)

	Item 6.2(c)
	Item 6.2(c)(i)

	Item 6.2(d)
	Item 6.2(d(i)

	Item 6.3(a)
	Item 6.3(b)

	Item 6.4(a)
	Item 6.5(a)
	Item 6.6(a)
	Item 6.7(a)
	Item 6.8(a)

	IG Items
	IG#1
	IG #2
	IG #3
	IG #4
	IG #5
	IG #6
	IG #7
	IG #8
	IG #9
	IG #10
	IG #11
	IG #12
	IG #13
	IG #14
	IG #15
	IG #16
	IG #17

	Report FIN-2015-016 - Ontario Regulation 284-09 2015 Budget
	Report FIN-2015-017 - Insurance Renewal
	Report FIN-2015-018 - 2014 Lease Financing Agreement Summary Report
	Report FIN-2015-019 - Township General Surplus 2014
	Report FIN-2015-020 - 2014 Space Needs Assessment
	Report FIN-2015-021 - 2015 Grant Application Policy and Fee Reduction-Waiver Policy
	Financial Reports 
	Item 8.2(g)(i)
	Item 8.2(g)(ii)
	Item 8.2(g)(iii)
	Item 8.2(g)(iv)

	Report ADM-2015-005 -  Director of Finance-Treasurer - Contract Position
	2014 11 03 - Puslinch Heritage Committee Minutes
	2015-03-17 Recreation Committee Minutes
	2015 02 10 - Committee of Adjustments Minutes
	2015 02 10 - Planning and Development Comittee Minutes



